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Vinco Ventures, Inc.’s (“Vinco”) fails to demonstrate a stay is warranted 

pending the outcome of its petition under NRAP 8(e). First and foremost, Vinco’s 

contention the district court exceeded its jurisdiction is meritless. The district court 

entered the orders after careful consideration of the issues to preserve the status quo 

and protect Vinco as a going concern. NRS 78.120(1) does not strip the district court 

of its considerable discretion to issue orders under NRS 78.010 et seq., NRS 32.010 

et seq., NRS 33.010 et seq., NRCP 1, NRCP 65, and general equitable principles. 

Vinco’s gross exaggeration of the scope and effect of the district court’s status quo 

orders does not undermine this discretion. The object of Vinco’s appeal, reversal of 

the challenged orders is not defeated absent a stay. Vinco cannot demonstrate it will 

suffer any harm absent a stay, let alone serious or irreparable harm. Instead, a stay 

would permit certain individuals within Vinco to revert back to the egregious and 

unchecked conduct that prompted the challenged status quo orders in the first place 

– to Vinco’s detriment. Hence, the NRAP 8(e) factors weigh strongly against a stay 

and this Court should deny the Motion. 

I. RELEVANT BACKGROUND  

Respondents are individuals who hold or previously held management roles 

at Vinco. Beginning in July 2022, just weeks after John Colucci was appointed to 

Vinco’s Board as an independent director, discord ensued. The discord began shortly 

after Board members received information calling into question Colucci’s 

independence. Chairman Vanderbilt then retained Gibson Dunn as independent 

counsel to, among other things, facilitate the Board’s adherence to its bylaws.1 

 
1See Exhibit A (Defendants Theodore Farnsworth, Lisa King, and Roderick 
Vanderbilt’s Opposition to Plaintiff Vinco Ventures, Inc.’s Motion for Temporary 
Restraining Order and Preliminary Injunction) at RESP003-004; RESP015; 
RESP066-67; RESP152.   
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Gibson Dunn confirmed issues existed related to Colucci’s disclosures, but Colucci 

refused to cooperate in Gibson Dunn’s investigation or rectify his disclosures.2 

Colucci and the other independent directors Brett Goldstein, and Michael DiStasio, 

then interfered with that investigation, forcing Gibson Dunn to resign.3 

After Gibson Dunn’s retention and resignation, Colucci embarked on a series 

of tumultuous Board meetings attempting to remove Vinco’s current management 

and gain control over operations in an apparent effort to conceal his inaccurate 

disclosures and remain at Vinco. On July 17, 2022, for example, the Board convened 

a meeting with the attendance of Gibson Dunn, but rather than use the secure, public 

company account provided by the Chair (where the Chair, King and Gibson Dunn 

were waiting), Colucci, Goldstein, and DiStasio instead met in private on a personal 

Zoom link.4 When the Chair attempted to join their meeting, they refused him entry 

until after they had purportedly voted to terminate King and appointed Colucci as 

interim CEO.5 On July 21, 2022, the Board convened another meeting, rescinded 

King’s termination, appointed her President of ZVV, and appointed Colucci and 

Farnsworth co-CEOs of the Company.6 

On July 24, 2022, the Board met again at DiStasio’s and Goldstein’s request.7 

Just seconds after the Chair announced the directors in attendance, Colucci hijacked 

the meeting from the Chair in violation of Vinco’s bylaws and corporate governance 

guidelines, muted the Chair throughout the meeting, and prevented him from 

engaging in deliberations or inquiring into the interestedness or fitness of the 

 
2 Id. at RESP004-005; RESP016; RESP066; RESP152.  
3 Id. at RESP005; RESP017; RESP152.   
4 Id. at RESP004; RESP016; RESP067.   
5 Id.  
6 Id. at RESP017; RESP070.  
7 Id. 
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directors about the matters being discussed.8 Colucci also blocked King’s attempts 

to engage in discussions; instead, cramming through his agenda, which included 

several un-noticed, self-interested resolutions.9 Rather than abstain from votes 

presenting a conflict of interest, Colucci cast the deciding vote to become Vinco’s 

sole CEO, and awarded himself other titles and powers.10  

In addition to the concerns raised by the Gibson Dunn investigation, the Chair 

received whistleblower reports alleging that Colucci, along with DiStasio and 

Goldstein, among others, have “breached their fiduciary duties, colluded to steal the 

Company’s trade secrets, and potentially committed fraud.”11 In spite of these 

serious whistleblower allegations, the independent directors refused to properly 

investigate these claims or act accordingly.12  

II. PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

The litigation between the parties first began when Colucci filed a complaint 

against Farnsworth and King in Rochester, New York on July 27, 2022, seeking a 

temporary restraining order (“TRO”).13 After Farnsworth and King responded, the 

New York court held a hearing on the merits, and refused to enter a TRO. Unable to 

get the desired outcome in New York, Colucci voluntarily “discontinued” that 

 
8 Id.; see also RESP038 (Bylaws) at § 5.5; RESP045 (Corporate Governance 
Guidelines) at § 4.  
9 See id. 
10 This is the dysfunctional and improper “board meeting”, which Vinco claims is 
dispositive as to Respondents’ terminations. Vinco claims not only that this was 
somehow a valid Board meeting, but that the very same self-interested individuals 
who hijacked the meeting and violated Vinco’s bylaws can also simply ratify any 
improprieties, without recourse or oversight by the district court.  
11 Ex. A at RESP070-71; RESP152.  
12 Id. at RESP005; RESP070-71; RESP152.  
13 See id. at RESP189-91 (July 29, 2022 Order to Show Cause). 
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action,14 and refiled it with the Nevada district court on August 3, 2022, seeking a 

second bite at the apple. The district court granted Colucci’s ex parte request for a 

TRO.15  

After Respondents opposed Vinco’s Motion, the district court held a three-

day hearing, and dissolved the TRO.16 In the middle of the three-day hearing, Vinco 

announced that a creditor was on the verge of declaring an $80 million loan in 

default.17 Mr. Colucci even told the district court that “the company could be 

bankrupt tomorrow.”18 In an effort to maintain the status quo and protect Vinco as 

a going concern pending resolution of this action, the district court issued various 

orders. Vinco challenges the district court’s August 17 and 19, 2022 orders 

(collectively the “Status Quo Orders”). The 8/17/22 Order, among other things, 

requires that a Board of the Directors meeting be held only: (1) with unanimous 

consent from the Board members, with at least 48-hours’ notice and an agenda; or 

(2) by order of the Court, further directing the Board members must not 

unreasonably refuse to agree to a board meeting or waive the 48-hours requirement.19  

The district court’s 8/19/22 Order recognizes Lisa King and Colucci as co-

CEO’s and appoints Ross Miller, Esq. to serve as third co-CEO, finding it was in 

Vinco’s best interest to have “an interim, neutral, and independent party” to serve as 

the third co-CEO.20 The 8/19/22 Order further: (a) orders the three co-CEO’s will 

equally share responsibilities and decision-making authority; (b) admonishes them 

 
14 See Exhibit B (Notice of Voluntary Discontinuance) at RESP194.  
15 Mot. at Ex. 3.  
16 Ex. A; Mot. at Exs. 4-5.   
17 See Mot. at Ex. 8 (8/17/22 Hrg. Trns.) at 8:15-25. 
18 See Mot. at Ex. 8 (8/17/22 Hrg. Trns.) at 46:21-22 (bold added).  
19 Mot. at Ex. 4 (8/17/22 Order).  
20 Mot. at Ex. 5 at (8/19/22 Order) at ¶¶ 3-5. 
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to work together in good faith in the best interests of Vinco; and (c) orders that 

Vinco’s Board and executives “shall take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure 

[Vinco’s] ongoing business operations.”21 The district court made clear the court-

appointed CEO was not a receiver, which it wanted to avoid for the negative 

connotations.22 The district court was unequivocal that the purpose its Status Quo 

Orders was to maintain the status quo to protect Vinco’s business operations and 

employees as a going concern.23  

On August 27, 2022, after a director requested a board meeting, King 

informed the directors she was unavailable, suggesting the Board handle the issue 

by unanimous written consent.24 Thereafter, counsel for the parties conferred on the 

issue, and the meeting did not go forward as both parties sought relief from the 

district court. The district court confirmed its 8/17/22 Order requires unanimous 

consent among the directors to hold board meetings.25 The district court requested 

Vinco fully brief its contentions under NRS 78.120 (which is the main basis for 

Vinco’s petition), but Vinco’s counsel refused, instead filing the petition.26 Thus, the 

district court did not have the opportunity to fully consider this issue. 

 

 

 
21 Id. 
22 See Mot. at Ex. 7 (8/18/22 Hrg. Trns.) at 31:5-12; 35:3-21; 36:8-15.  
23 See Mot. at Ex. 8 (8/17/22 Hrg. Trns.) at 55:5-56:8; 58:-12; 59:2-3; 64:16-19; Mot. 
at Ex. 7 (8/18/22 Hrg. Trns.) at 6:9-19; Exhibit C (8/24/22 Hrg. Trns.) at 16:22-
18:5; Mot. at Ex. 6 (8/31/22 Hrg. Trns) at 62:15-18.  
24 Exhibit D (9/6/22 Opposition to Motion for Clarification) at RESP280.  
25 See Exhibit E (9/9/22 Hrg. Trans.) at 50:13-53:25.  
26 Id. at 53:14-54:2, 54:14-15, 54:24-55:7, 56:10-14. Neither Vinco’s August 29, 
2022 Motion to Modify or its August 31, 2022 Motion for Clarification, on which 
its petition is based, cite to NRS 78.120(2). 
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III. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. Legal Standard. 

To decide whether to issue a stay, this Court generally considers the following 

factors: (1) whether the object of the appeal will be defeated without a stay; (2) 

whether petitioner will suffer irreparable or serious injury absent a stay; (3) whether 

respondent will suffer irreparable or serious injury if stay is granted; and (4) whether 

petitioner is likely to prevail on the merits of the petition. Nev. R. App. P. 8(c). No 

one factor carries more weight than the others, but if one or two factors are especially 

strong, they may counterbalance other weak factors. Mikohn Gaming Corp. v. 

McCrea, 120 Nev. 248, 251, 89 P.3d 36, 38 (2004).  

B. No Reason Exists to Stay the District Court Orders or Proceedings. 

The NRAP 8(c) factors weigh heavily against a stay. First, the object of 

Vinco’s petition, which is simply to overturn the district court’s Status Quo Orders, 

is not defeated absent a stay. Vinco can obtain this outcome regardless of whether 

the Status Quo Orders are stayed pending this Court’s decision on the merits of 

Vinco’s petition. 

Second, Vinco cannot demonstrate serious injury or irreparable harm. The 

district court did not appoint a receiver under NRS Chapter 78 or NRS 32.010. The 

receiver cases Vinco cites are thus immaterial. The 8/19/22 Order provides all three 

co-CEOs share equal responsibilities and decision-making authority, and 

admonishes them to work together in good faith in the best interests of Vinco.27 

Vinco’s claim this order “functionally appoints” Mr. Miller as a receiver grossly 

exaggerates the order and has no basis in law or fact. Mr. Miller does not become a 

receiver simply because Vinco says so, nor is he a receiver simply because he 

 
27 Mot. at Ex. 5.  



7 

sometimes votes differently than Colucci. Vinco cannot demonstrate irreparable 

harm on this basis.  

Vinco also failed to demonstrate serious or irreparable harm if King, who 

served as Vinco’s CEO without issue from October 2021 until the Colucci-induced 

chaos that ensued, serves as a co-CEO pending Vinco’s petition. Vinco’s bare 

citation to Zhou v. Deng, No. CV 2021-0026-JRS, 2022 WL 1617218 (Del. Ch. May 

23, 2022), an unpublished case, does nothing to support Vinco’s contention here. 

Vinco’s manufactured contention the Status Quo Orders preclude Vinco’s board 

from fulfilling its fiduciary duties is also insufficient. Nothing in the Status Quo 

Orders preclude the Board from holding a meeting or otherwise fulfilling its duties.  

To the contrary, Vinco will almost certainly suffer serious harm if this Court 

enters a stay. Despite CEO King’s direction to the CFO not to make any additional 

payments to AI-Pros pending resolution of serious issues, and the numerous 

whistleblower complaints alleging collusion between Colucci, AI-Pros, and others 

to steal Vinco’s intellectual property, before and during the pendency of the ex parte 

TRO, Colucci (purportedly on behalf of Vinco); (1) entered into two additional 

agreements with AI-Pros.; (2) directed payment of an additional $1.5 million in 

funds to AI-Pros; and (3) earmarked an additional $4 million in payments to AI-

Pros. Simultaneously, Colucci directed over a $1 million in payments to attorneys, 

including an $875,000 payment to the attorneys implicated in some of the 

whistleblower complaints. And, all of this was done despite Vinco’s claims to the 

district court it is in a cash crisis.28 If this Court stays the district court’s Status Quo 

Orders, nothing will stop these individuals from resuming this egregious behavior, 

to the detriment of the shareholders and employees. As such, as to the third factor, 

 
28 See Mot. at Ex. 6 (8/31 Hrg. Trns.) at 13:6-8.  
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while Respondents may not personally suffer serious or irreparable harm if this 

Court enters a stay, as set forth above, Vinco (not Colucci, DiStasio, Goldstein, and 

the executives, vendors, and attorneys they are apparently protecting) will suffer 

serious harm if these individuals are allowed to revert to raiding Vinco’s coffers for 

their own individual benefit, with no court oversight. See Sobol v. Capital 

Management, 102 Nev. 444, 446, 726 P.2d 335, 337 (1986) (concluding, in the 

context of an injunction, that “acts committed without just cause which unreasonably 

interfere with a business or destroy its credit or profits, may do an irreparable 

injury”). 

Vinco is also not likely to prevail on the merits of its petition. Initially, Vinco’s 

petition is premature because Vinco refused the district court’s request to brief 

Vinco’s contentions under NRS 78.120(1), and instead filed this petition.29 This 

Court should not only deny Vinco’s petition on this basis alone, but also because the 

crux of Vinco’s petition is the unsupported proposition the district court does not 

have the authority to issue orders pertaining to Vinco’s corporate governance. Vinco 

offers two unpersuasive arguments in support of its petition. First, Vinco claims NRS 

78.120(1) precludes a district court (specifically including a business court) from 

ever issuing any order in any circumstance that could conceivably limit the power 

of a board of directors. Vinco does not cite any authority for this proposition, instead 

ignoring the district court’s considerable discretion to issue orders and control the 

business court proceedings before it. See NRS 78.010 et seq., NRS 32.010 et seq., 

NRS 33.010 et seq., NRCP 65, NRCP 1, and general equitable principles. Courts 

have inherent power to provide themselves with appropriate instruments required for 

the performance of their judicial duties. Ex Parte Peterson, 253 U.S. 300, 312, 40 

 
29 See fn. 24. supra.   



9 

S.Ct. 543, 64 L.Ed. 919 (1920). This power includes authority to appoint persons 

unconnected with the court to aid judges in the performance of specific judicial 

duties, as they may arise in the progress of a cause. Id.; see also Chen v. Stewart, 

2004 UT 82, ¶¶ 50-51, 100 P.3d 1177, 1190, abrogated on other grounds by State 

v. Nielsen, 2014 UT 10, ¶¶ 50-51, 326 P.3d 645 (equitable power to appoint 

receiver); VTB Bank v. Navitron Projects Corp., No. CIV.A. 8514-VCN, 2014 WL 

1691250, at *5 (Del. Ch. Apr. 28, 2014) (“This Court has the inherent equitable 

power to appoint a receiver [or custodian] for a Delaware limited liability company 

even where this remedy is not expressly available by statute or under the operative 

company agreement.”); Afremov v. Amplatz, No. A04-952, 2005 WL 89475, at *2 

(Minn. Ct. App. Jan. 18, 2005) (Court appointing interim CEO).  

Vinco’s own citation to Klaassen v. Allegro Dev. Corp., No. CA 8626-VCL, 

2013 WL 5967028, at *2 (Del. Ch. Nov. 7, 2013) wholly undermines its contention 

that the district court did not have the authority to enter the Status Quo Orders. In 

Klaassen, the court notes it is “customary” in corporate governance dispute actions 

for the court to enter a status quo order precluding “the directors presently in control 

of the corporation from engaging in transactions outside the ordinary course of the 

corporation's business until the control issue is resolved”, which derives from the 

recognition that where corporate power is disputed between two groups, the risk of 

unauthorized exercise of power over a company’s assets and processes justifies a 

court’s imposition of reasonable restrictions on the exercise of corporate power in 

actions concerning corporate governance disputes.  Id. at *2 (citations omitted). 

Perhaps more ironically, it was Vinco that submitted itself to the district 

court’s jurisdiction when it initiated this action and sought ex parte relief after it was 

unable to get a TRO in New York. Now that those who purportedly currently control 
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Vinco do not like the Court’s Status Quo Orders leveling the playing field – issued 

after the district court heard both sides of the story – it suddenly contends the district 

court lacks authority to issue orders pertaining to Vinco’s operations. Vinco cannot 

demonstrate the Status Quo orders exceeded the district court’s considerable 

authority as provided herein and is not likely to succeed on its petition.  

Vinco contends the district court exceeded its discretion by appointing a 

receiver without making the necessary statutory findings. The district court, 

however, did not appoint a receiver. Vinco’s reliance on Hill. v. Cohen, 40 F.4th 

101, 110 (3d Cir. 2022) is misplaced, especially as Mr. Miller does not solely control 

Vinco or its assets, but shares equal responsibilities and decision-making authority 

with two other individuals, subject to oversight by Vinco’s board. Vinco cannot 

change the plain and simple fact Mr. Miller is not a receiver.  

Contrary to Vinco’s self-serving contentions, the district court did not 

improperly “usurp” Vinco’s ability to govern itself but simply put some reasonable 

conditions in place to help preserve the status quo and protect Vinco as a going 

concern pending resolution of this action on the merits. Vinco fails to cite any 

authority demonstrating the district court abused its discretion or exceeded its 

jurisdiction in issuing orders setting certain restrictions and limitations on Vinco’s 

operations under these circumstances. Vinco’s one-sided narrative and its refusal to 

even attempt to work in good faith as required by the Status Quo Orders is wholly 

insufficient to warrant relief. Accordingly, the NRAP 8(e) factors weigh strongly 

against a stay of the Court’s 8/17/22 and 8/19/22 Orders or the proceedings below.  

IV. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, the Court should deny Petitioner’s Motion as a stay 

is not warranted.  
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DATED this 20th day of September, 2022. 

KEMP JONES, LLP 
 
/s/ Nathanael Rulis     
Will Kemp, Esq. (#1205) 
Nathanael R. Rulis, Esq. (#11259) 
Madison P. Zornes-Vela (#13626) 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th 
Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Attorneys for Real Parties in Interest 
Theodore Farnsworth & Erik Noble 
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Hi Phil,
All things aside, I am happy to work with you on items that you want to file. We are using a new
printer now.
Please feel free to reach out.
Thank you.
-Erik

From: Ted Farnsworth <TFarnsworth@Vincoventures.com>
Sent: Monday, July 25, 2022 1:21 PM
To: Philip Jones <pjones@Vincoventures.com>; elliot@whitedoveequities.com
<elliot@whitedoveequities.com>; Giovanni Colucci <john@hwydata.com>; Mike Distasio
<mike@chair.com>; Lisa King <Lking@Vincoventures.com>; Lisa King <Lking@Vincoventures.com>
Cc: Erik Noble <ENoble@Vincoventures.com>; Erik U. Noble <enoble@zash.global>; Seth Levine
<slevine@levinelee.com>; Ken Lee <klee@levinelee.com>; Illena Roberts <iroberts@levinelee.com>;
Ted Farnsworth <tfarnsworth@zash.global>
Subject: Policy for Use of Vinco Ventures, Inc. EDGAR SEC Codes

Privileged and Business Confidential Information, not to be shared with anyone. 
This is non-Public information.

Monday, July 25, 2022

Dear Vinco Ventures, Inc. Senior Management and Board:

Company counsel has advised senior leadership and management of Vinco Ventures, Inc. (“the
Company”) on the most secure way to keep unauthorized company filings from appearing in the SEC's
Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval (EDGAR) Filer Management system. The Company's
Chief Security Officer and Chief of Staff, Erik Noble, should remain as the gatekeeper of the EDGAR
keys that provide EDGAR codes required for EDGAR printing, as well as the main point of contact for
the EDGAR printer (or EDGAR software printing service if the Company chooses to use this option in
the future).

Please reach out to Chief of Staff Erik Noble during the process of necessary 
 for final approval of and generation for EDGAR filings. 

Thank you.
-Ted

Ted Farnsworth
Co-CEO of Vinco Ventures, Inc.
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MONROE COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE THIS IS NOT A BILL. THIS IS YOUR RECEIPT.

Receipt # 3157256

Book    Page    CIVIL

Return To:
MICHAEL EDWARD NICHOLSON

No. Pages:  2

Instrument: STIPULATION OF DISCONTINUANCE

Control #: 202208040481
Index #: E2022005847

Date: 08/04/2022

 Vinco Ventures, Inc. Time: 11:12:59 AM

 Farnsworth, Theodore
 King, Lisa

 Discontinuance Fee $35.00

Total Fees Paid: $35.00
Employee: CW

State of New York

MONROE COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE
WARNING – THIS SHEET CONSTITUTES THE CLERKS
ENDORSEMENT, REQUIRED BY SECTION 317-a(5) &
SECTION 319 OF THE REAL PROPERTY LAW OF THE
STATE OF NEW YORK. DO NOT DETACH OR REMOVE.

JAMIE ROMEO

MONROE COUNTY CLERK

FILED: MONROE COUNTY CLERK 08/04/2022 11:05 AM INDEX NO. E2022005847

NYSCEF DOC. NO. 29 RECEIVED NYSCEF: 08/04/2022

1 of 2
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STATE OF NEW YORK  

SUPREME COURT                           COUNTY OF MONROE 

 

VINCO VENTURES, INC.,  

 

 Plaintiff, 

v. 

 

THEODORE FARNSWORTH AND LISA KING,  

 

 Defendants. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF VOLUNTARY 

DISCONTINUANCE 

PURSUANT TO  

CPLR 3217(a)(1) 

 

Index No.: E2022005847 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Plaintiff Vinco Ventures, Inc., by and through its 

attorneys, Barclay Damon LLP, hereby voluntarily discontinues the above-captioned action, 

without prejudice, pursuant to CPLR 3217(a)(1). 

 

Dated: August  4, 2022    BARCLAY DAMON LLP 

 

      By: s/ Michael E. Nicholson  

       David G. Burch, Jr. 

       Michael E. Nicholson 

         

Attorneys for Plaintiff 

Barclay Damon Tower 

125 East Jefferson Street 

Syracuse, New York 13202 

Tel.: (315) 425-2700 

 

202208040481 Index # : E2022005847FILED: MONROE COUNTY CLERK 08/04/2022 11:05 AM INDEX NO. E2022005847

NYSCEF DOC. NO. 29 RECEIVED NYSCEF: 08/04/2022
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RTRAN 

 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
 
VINCO VENTURES, INC., 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
THEODORE FARNSWORTH, et 
al, 
 
                          Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
 

 
 
  CASE#:  A-22-856404-B 
 
  DEPT.  XVI 
 
 
 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE TIMOTHY WILLIAMS, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 24, 2022 

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING 

ALL PENDING MOTIONS 

 
APPEARANCES:   
 
  For the Plaintiff:    JOEL TASKA, ESQ. 
       ANDREW CLARK, ESQ. 
       REX GARNER, ESQ. 
 

For the Defendants:    WILLIAM S. KEMP, ESQ. 
       THEODORE PARKER, III, ESQ 
       NATHANIEL R. RULIS, ESQ. 
       MADISON ZORNES-VELA, 
       ESQ. 
 
 
 

Case Number: A-22-856404-B

Electronically Filed
8/26/2022 2:51 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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APPEARANCES (continued):   
 

Also Appearing:    AMY L. SUGDEN, ESQ. 
       (for Ross Miller) 
       GABE HUNTERTON 
       JESSE LAW 
       ERIK NOBLE (via BlueJeans) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECORDED BY:  MARIA GARIBAY, COURT RECORDER 
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Wednesday, August 24, 2022 

 

[Case called at 10:11 a.m.] 

THE MARSHAL:  Please be seated.   

THE COURT:  Okay, I just want to say good morning to 

everyone and welcome you to the I guess midmorning session.  And 

let's go ahead and set forth -- I'm going to call the one matter I guess 

that's Vinco Ventures, Inc. versus Theodore Farnsworth, et al.  And let's 

go ahead and set forth our appearances for the record.   

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, Joel Taska and Andrew Clark for 

Ballard Spahr for the Plaintiff.  And Your Honor, we are the new guys in 

the room, so to speak.   

I do have a couple of matters I wanted to raise as this is 

moving quickly.  So after appearances are entered and before we get 

the motions, I'd like to be heard if I could.   

THE COURT:  Yeah, sir, you can be heard.  I don't think I've 

ever not permitted anyone to be heard, so. 

MR. TASKA:  Thank you, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. GARNER:  Good morning, Judge, Rex Garner from Fox 

Rothschild on -- also on behalf of Vinco.   

THE COURT:  Good morning, sir.   

MR. KEMP:  Your Honor, Will Kemp for Defendant 

Farnsworth.  

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, I'll let Ms. Sugden put her 
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presence -- her appearance on the record first.   

MS. SUGDEN:  Good morning, Your Honor, I entered a notice 

of appearance this morning on behalf of Ross Miller, given this Court's 

order to appoint him as the third co-CEO. 

He also has with him Gabe Hunterton.  He was not a lawyer, 

but and Jesse Lawyer -- Jesse Law, who is not a lawyer as well, but as 

part of Mr. Miller's process to get up to speed, he's engaged these 

individuals to assist.  So we're here today on their behalf.   

THE COURT:  I understand.   

MS. SUGDEN:  Thank you.   

THE COURT:  Good morning, ma'am.   

MR. PARKER:  Good morning, Your Honor, Theodore Parker 

on behalf of Lisa King and Rod Vanderbilt.  

MR. RULIS:  Good morning, Your Honor Nate Rulis on behalf 

of Defendants Farnsworth and specially appearing Defendant Noble.   

MS. ZORNES-VELA:  Good morning, Your Honor, Madison 

Zornes-Vela on behalf of the Defendant Farnsworth and specially 

appearing Defendant Mr. Noble.   

THE COURT:  All right, I think that covers all appearances, 

right?  Okay, all right, sir, is there something you wanted to say?   

MR. TASKA:  Yeah, thank you, Your Honor.  And again, I 

know there was a long sort of history that took place last week on this 

case.  And we are still drinking from the fire hose.  We were just retained 

this week and getting up to speed. 

But you know, in looking at the orders and the other filings in 
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the case, we're at a place right now that I wouldn't expect.  And the 

reason I say that is because it's our side, the Plaintiff's side, that has 

claims against the Defendants.   

They don't have any claims against us.  It's our side that filed 

the emergent motion.  They don't have any motion for a TRO or a 

preliminary injunction pending against our side.   

And the status quo, when we made our filings, the complaint 

and the motion for emergent relief, was that the Defendants were fired.  

On their best day, even taking everything that they say is true, they were 

still fired.   

And instead, what we wound up here with is not a status quo 

where they're -- where they are fired, but a status quo where we have 

this sort of coalition government so to speak.  

And I think that, you know, coming into this fresh, my view on 

this is that what the Court needs to do because this coalition government 

situation, I'm going to get into that in a little more detail in a moment, is 

not helping my client.  It's not advancing the purpose of the motion.  It's 

irreparable harm that's continuing to take place.   

And I think what the Court needs to do hopefully, I know we're 

going to be back here on the 31st of August, maybe there's another time 

we can do this, but I think what we need to do is focus like a laser on 

whether these folks were actually fired.   

And that's really going to take the -- an examination of the 

single meeting, which is the meeting of the company's Board of 

Directors that took place on July 24th.   
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And so, what I'm hoping is we can get back to that place 

because what I see coming from the other side is a lot of distraction and 

noise.   

They have tried to create this narrative that it's Mr. Colucci is 

the devil incarnate, that he's the bad guy.  Even if you took Mr. Colucci's 

vote out of the mix on July 24th, the majority of the Board still fired the 

Defendants.   

And so, all of this, including the motions that Your Honor's 

going to hear today, are noise.  That's all they are.  It's a distraction from 

the real issue, which I'm hoping Your Honor will get to, which is let's take 

a look at what happened at this meeting.  Let's see if there was valid 

Board action that took place there.  Now that's the first thing I want to 

say.   

The second thing I want to say, and this gets back to this -- 

sort of this coalition government, the company this week had its initial 

meeting of the three CEOs.   

So Your Honor appointed Mr. Miller as -- I believe the 

language of the order was that he's neutral and independent and he was 

there to sort of break ties, because you know, each side is butting 

heads.  

And, again, I wasn't here.  I'm not sure how that happened 

exactly, but I don't see any motion on the docket for Mr. Miller's 

appointment.  I didn't see any sort of --  

THE COURT:  There was a request made in open court, sir.   

MR. TASKA:  Understood, thank you, Your Honor.  I don't 
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think there was any particular vetting though of what, you know, Mr. 

Miller's alignments were or anything like that to see if he truly would be 

neutral and independent.   

THE COURT:  I will say this.  Whether someone's 

independent, that appears to be a big issue in this case.   

MR. TASKA:  It certainly does, Your Honor.  They have 

created that issue.   

My point, going back to my first point, is that's actually not the 

issue.  And we can talk about that further.  But in any event, what we 

have here now is the three CEOs per Your Honor's order.  One of those 

CEOs, Mr. Miller, is supposed to be neutral and independent.  

And the three co-CEOs had their first meeting on Monday of 

this week.  And it was videotaped or whatever you call it.  It's on video 

and we can show it to Your Honor if you'd like to see it.  

But the -- what we learned there is that when Mr. Miller was 

making his introductory remarks, and I'm not casting any aspersions on 

Mr. Miller at this point.  I don't think, you know, necessarily think he did 

anything wrong here.   

But what we found out is that one of his two personal advisors 

on this matter on how to make decisions for the company is a gentleman 

named Jesse Law.   

And Jesse Law was actually in the room with Mr. Miller during 

this Zoom call with the three CEOs and some of the other officers.   

Jesse Law, Your Honor, and I believe he's in the courtroom as 

well, he's affiliated with the Defendants.  And I can give you the details 
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on that in a moment.  

And so, the person who is going to be advising our supposed 

neutral and independent CEO, the one who's supposed to break ties, is 

being advised his decisions are being informed by someone who's 

aligned with the Defendants.  

And to get specific about that, Your Honor, Mr. Law was 

recently appointed as manager of Defendant Farnsworth's flagship 

company.   

So this -- you know, there are a lot of things I would like to 

change about the way this proceeding has gone and where it seems to 

be going, but at a minimum, that has to be rectified because that's in 

violation of Your Honor's order.  

We do not have a neutral and independent third CEO.  We 

had a third CEO who has -- is being informed on an ongoing basis and 

has been informed by somebody who is in bed with the Defendants.  

And so, that's got to change.  And Your Honor, I mean, I don't 

know exactly what happened at this meeting, but you can watch the 

meeting.   

One of the things that you'll observe is that one of the 

Defendants, Mr. Noble, is there.  And he sort of feigns ignorance as to 

who Mr. Law is.   

We've got photos that we can share with Your Honor that 

show them in the same room from a period of time months ago.   

Mr. Law is clearly aligned with the Defendants.  Defendants 

are hiding the ball on that because they don't want Your Honor to find 
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that out.   

And in the meantime, the company is suffering.  At that 

meeting, the one thing that was decided was whether to cancel a 

stockholders meeting of the company.   

And the three CEOs voted.  And what a surprise, the 

Defendant CEO Ms. King, and Mr. Miller voted the same way to not 

have that stockholders meeting over the objection of Mr. Colucci, the 

third CEO, who said that meeting definitely has to go forward or else it's 

going to harm the company.   

The very next day, Your Honor, the company's stock dropped 

by 14.7 percent.  So millions of dollars were lost in that day because of a 

decision that was made by the Defendants.  

The Defendants are now controlling this company, which is 

exactly why we came into Court on emergent basis to stop that from 

happening.  And here's where we are.  And I'll shut up now, Your Honor, 

and I'm sure I'm going to hear -- 

THE COURT:  No, no, no, I'm listening.  Sir, I'm listening. 

MR. TASKA:  Yeah, I'm sure we're going to hear quite a bit 

from the other side.  And we can hear the motions, but Your Honor, the 

motions are just -- they're more of the same, a way to distract the Court 

to make the Court go down a rabbit hole on this Colucci business when 

that's not the issue.   

If they think Colucci's independent, they have claims against 

Colucci, where they want to sue Colucci -- 

THE COURT:  No, they don't think he is independent.  That's 
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the position they're taking.   

MR. TASKA:  Well, then okay, so he runs breached a fiduciary 

duty if something like that, they can have at it.  Let them file claims 

against him.  There are no claims against him right now.   

The claims in this case are by the company against these 

Defendants to get them out.  And that's what the Court should be 

litigating.   

THE COURT:  And for the record, sir, just so you understand, 

I guess we had some discussions.  And I was concerned about whether 

the litigation was impacting the ability of the company to continue on.   

And I even thought about at one point, I just kind of mentioned 

it sua sponte although I would never make this -- that type of decision, 

but I said, well, maybe this might be the time for a receiver or something 

like that, right, somebody that reports directly to the Court, right?   

And his name was -- Mr. Miller's name was mentioned as a 

potential alternative.  And then, the parties caucused for a while and 

they couldn't come up to real any -- real conclusion.   

Counsel on behalf of, wasn't it Mr. Connot? 

MR. PARKER:  Connot. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, he had one position.  Mr. Parker had 

another position.  I think Mr. Kemp had another position.   

And Mr. Kemp brought up maybe we should have a third 

neutral Board member to help with the company being able to continue 

to conduct business so on and so on.   

And so, that's how that happened just to give you a -- 
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MR. TASKA:  That's helpful, background Your Honor, but -- 

and on under other circumstances, Mr. Miller might be the perfect 

person to do that job.   

Here, the well has been poisoned.  I mean, it's unacceptable.  

We can't have this happen where you have Mr. Law and Mr. Miller sitting 

together.  Mr. Law is with them.  He should be sitting over here.  So it's   

--  don't know if Your Honor has any reaction to that.   

THE COURT:  No, I understand.  No, you're just telling me 

your position.  I get it. 

MR. TASKA:  Yeah, okay.  Thank you Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Mr. Parker? 

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, I only -- I stood up because I 

initially - -and I've never practiced against Mr. Taska.  I don't think we've 

ever met or had any cases together, but typically when we file motions, 

we get the first chance to argue.   

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. PARKER:  Mr. Taska got up, talking how he was not 

going to address the motions in terms of the merits of the motion, he 

wanted to put some -- a few things in front of the Court.   

He starts out by arguing the points within their Opposition to 

the motion filed at 10:00 last night.   

He virtually repeats the declaration signed by Mr. Colucci 

going right back to the July 24th, 2022 Board meeting.   

And so, I find it disturbing that that's how he would enter this 

case by saying he's going to inform the Court of something other than 
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the merits of the motions and the oppositions.  And that's where he 

starts. 

So I'm a little concerned that perhaps he will from this point 

forward adhere to the decorum of those filing the motion actually get to 

argue the motion first.  He gets a chance to close . And then, we get to 

finish.   

And in terms of what he has said, I also am a little bit 

disappointed that he would say I'm not here to cast any aspersions in 

terms of Mr. Miller, but then, he starts criticizing Mr. Miller.   

And so, I'm really troubled by the comments he made to the 

Court, which appear not to be not only accurate, but he knew going into 

this conversation that he wanted to argue the merit ahead of us.  He 

wanted to criticize the Court's decision to appoint Mr. Miller.  

And he wanted to try to figure a way of suggesting a 

causation, some form of causation between not having a stockholders 

meeting and the stock value going down versus simply a correlation 

perhaps.  

Either way, the arguments that he's already made ahead of us 

actually arguing our own motion is inappropriate in terms of when he put 

them forward and we've read everything he had to say based upon his 

oppositions.  And I'm assuming the Court got them roughly at 10:00 last 

night.   

THE COURT:  Yeah.  And, Mr. Parker, you've been in front of 

me enough to know that I'm not -- it's not going to be the first word or the 

last word.  I make a decision based upon what I think would be 
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appropriate under the facts and circumstances of the case.   

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  And the law.  And the law.   

MR. PARKER:  The other thing that I'm concerned about is he 

spent a quit bit of time re-arguing the TRO.  The points he's raised now, 

we spent three days going over.  This Court has heard everything that 

he said this morning before -- 

THE COURT:  Well, the preliminary -- the injunctive relief 

orders -- 

MR. PARKER:  Except for the meeting this week.   

THE COURT:  -- aren't current, but they're not currently 

pending anyway.  Those have been -- yeah.   

MR. PARKER:  Exactly.  So if it was up to me, it was a waste 

of the Court's time.  And to me, it felt like a criticism of the Court's prior 

actions that took place after three days of intense oral argument.  

The other thing I wanted to point out that I'm a little 

disappointed in in terms of their entrance into the case is they're arguing 

points in their Opposition that in fact are simply untrue. 

The Court indicated that it had a certain inclination or leaning 

towards the complexity of this case.  And yet, they put in their Opposition 

that this is a simple, not complex case, perhaps a criticism of the Court's 

description of how complex this case might be.  

And the other thing that I thought --  

THE COURT:  I think in a general sense, Mr. Parker, there's 

no -- there's -- it's rare.  I shouldn't say no.  It's rare that you have simple 
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situations where it comes to civil litigation.  It's always more complex 

once you dig a little deeper than it first appears.  And that's true -- 

MR. PARKER:  That's right.  And maybe he just has not 

gotten deep enough in the case to have a full appreciation for the 

complexity of this case.   

And that could be it, because he's also made some comments 

about things in his Opposition and statements today that simply are 

untrue.   

Our time for answering the complaint hasn't run yet.  I can 

suggest to you that there will probably be counterclaims going against 

Mr. Colucci for sure in this case, because we're concerned that who 

gave Vinco -- in terms of the Board members or the CEOs, we're not 

aware of any authority provided hiring this law firm.  I've not seen 

anything that has authorized the retention of Ballard Spahr.  

In fact, I didn't see anything authorizing the retention of their 

prior counsel or a continuation of the retention of Lucosky Brookman.  

So I'd love to see that information, because certainly I'm not aware of 

Mr. Miller or Ms. King or Mr. Colucci producing a document retaining that 

firm.  So these are things that will add to the complexity of this case I'm 

sure.   

But Your Honor, I want to actually get into the meat of the 

motions.  I'm going to let Mr. Kemp start and we can go from there. 

MR. KEMP:  And, Judge, before we get to the motions, a 

couple points.  Counsel -- and I recognize it's a complicated case.  You 

know, it's hard to get to up speed.  There's lots of names.  
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And so, counsel got up and the very first thing he said is I 

didn't see a TRO filed by the Defendants.  We filed an ex parte motion 

for TRO.  I mean, how can you miss that?   

MR. TASKA:  Where is it on the docket? 

MR. KEMP:  It was emailed to you.   

MR. TASKA:  Was it filed?   

MR. KEMP:  It was emailed to you.   

MR. TASKA:  Wasn't filed.   

MR. KEMP:  Well, it wasn't emailed to you.   

MR. PARKER:  It was submitted to the Court. 

MR. KEMP:  It was emailed to opposing attorney.  

MR. RULIS:  As an ex parte here. 

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, but in any event, and please don't interrupt 

me.  I didn't interrupt you even though you made a lot of mistakes.  

So, Your Honor, I understand it's a complex case.  It's hard to 

get up to speed.  But basically, he comes in here and he tells the judge 

everything we did last week was wrong in my opinion.   

Well, file a motion for re-hearing.  He just file a motion for 

re-hearing.  That's his right to do, but he hasn't done it.  Might not do it, 

but until he does it, why should we re-visit everything he did last week?   

And then, he says that --  

THE COURT:  You know, I think it's important to point -- 

because I remember this case.  And at the end of the day, ultimately, I 

granted the TRO.  And then, the TRO was dissolved by an order entered 

by me as trial judge in this case, right?   
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Last but not least, there was a significant discussion as to 

what is the status quo or maintaining the status quo.  And everyone 

agreed -- disagreed as to specifically what that meant.   

I looked at it from this perspective as far as maintaining the 

status quo would be this.  To make sure the Vinco Ventures entity can 

continue to conduct business.   

And at the end of the day, we can ferret out and decide 

ultimately who's in charge of what?  Who's on the Board and whether or 

not the election was appropriate, whether or not there was an 

investigation or not, why there was -- why there was a termination of 

Board members and all these things, right?   

And so in my mind, the status quo was I wanted to make sure 

this company continued on, right? 

MR. KEMP:  Right, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  And functioned as a business.  Nothing more, 

nothing less.  Because as far as the status quo is concerned I basically 

am looking at it through those lenses because I anticipate -- and 

understand this, and this is what's important to not forget.   

This is a business court case.  And everyone in here has 

practiced in business court, right?  In business court, judges are 

supposed to expedite these matters, get you in real quick, and do all 

sorts of things.  

And I looked at it because we had -- I know there was going to 

be an answer and counterclaims, right?  It's obvious because upon all 

the motions that were filed in this case, right?   
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And so, the decision I made, I was looking at it from this 

perspective.  It's a question of fairness and preserving the ongoing 

capabilities of this business, nothing more, nothing less.  And at the end 

of the day, they'll be some decisions made, maybe by me, maybe by a 

jury.  I don't know.   

MR. KEMP:  And then counsel --  

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, can I respond?   

MR. KEMP:  I was not done, okay? 

MR. TASKA:  I -- 

MR. KEMP:  I was not done.  Sit down.   

THE COURT:  But no -- but sir -- you're going to get no -- 

gentlemen. 

Bobby, I don't want to have you have to come in and assist 

me. 

THE MARSHAL:  Yes, sir. 

THE COURT:  But anyway, gentlemen, historically, I let 

everyone speak their piece, right?   

And so, sir, I'm going to give you more than a full and fair 

opportunity to respond anything Mr. Parker or Mr. Kemp has to say.   

MR. TASKA:  Thank you, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Because it's like the prior matter, I don't want to 

have hit the moot button as far as this case is concerned.   

MR. KEMP:  And Your Honor, counsel referred to the six-hour 

meeting between three CEOs.  I have reviewed the tape, but like Mr. 

Parker said, I don't think the retention of Ballard Spahr was addressed.  
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He is supposed to be representing Vinco.  He is not here representing 

Mr. Colucci. 

Mr. Colucci does not have the unilateral right at this point, 

unless he's violated the Court's order, to sit here and retain people from 

the company without at least addressing it with the other CEOs.  

And if counsel says, oh, the company's suffering, well, he 

doesn't tell you is that they paid $875,000 to the Lucosky firm last week, 

$875,000.  

Remember, we were arguing for hours about whether they 

could afford to pay a $70,000 payroll for two weeks?  And now they've 

sat here and paid counsel $875,000.   

And I don't what Ballard Spahr got.  I don't know if they got 

$875,000, but I mean, these are not decisions Mr. Colucci should be 

making on his own without consulting the other two CEOs.   

And then, counsel says, oh, oh, today, the stock market fell 

650 points, the company stock went down 12 percent.  So that shows 

there's a negative shareholder reaction to what the Court did.   

Well, Your Honor, today, the stock's up 12.81 percent.  The 

stock market goes up.  The stock market comes down.  We can't base 

the court decisions on whether we have a good or bad day in the stock 

market.  

THE COURT:  Well, I will say, this, Mr. Kemp.  And I don't 

mind saying this.  What I was trying to do is add stability to the company 

by just -- by I guess following your suggestion.  And it appears to me 

maybe that did occur.  I don't know.  But -- and I'm not a financial guy.  I 
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mean, I do got a degree in business, but I haven't dealt with those 

issues for a long time.   

MR. KEMP:  You know, Mr. Miller's getting up to speed.  He 

just doesn't have to learn the legal pleadings.  He's got to learn the 

company.  

But I mean, that's the fundamental problem here and I think 

that brings us to the first motion.  And so, I'll let counsel respond to what 

we said and then I'd like to address the motion.   

THE COURT:  All right.   

MR. TASKA:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Just very briefly.  What 

I heard were a lot of sort of personal attacks on me and -- but what I 

didn't hear out of this side was anything about the issue of Mr. Miller 

being advised by Mr. Law, who's affiliated with the Defendant.   

Your Honor, if -- I was hoping given how quickly things were 

moving, we could address that right now.  If Your Honor would like us to 

file another motion on an order shortening time, we could do that, but 

that issue has to be addressed immediately.   

And I find it ironic that they say the three CEOs should have 

decided what counsel to hire.  Well, the counsel's that's going be hired, 

it's going to be 2 to 1 against whatever Mr. Colucci wants, because 

they've stacked the deck so that they have 2 CEOs to our 1 is 

essentially what they have done.  So that's the troubling issue.   

I would hope that the Court would find that troubling as well 

since the order submitted by Defendant's counsel to Your Honor that 

Your Honor signed said that Mr. Miller was going to be neutral and 
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independent.  

So I guess I just ask Your Honor before we proceed with the 

motions, whether we ought to file a separate motion or if we can maybe 

hammer out some resolution to that today? 

MR. KEMP:  Judge, we're going to be here Wednesday.  I 

would suggest they file a separate motion.  I'll stipulate to have it heard 

on order shortening time.   

If they want a separate motion challenging Mr. Miller's 

independence, I'm going to file a cross-motion trying to figure who they 

represent.   

They are supposedly here on behalf of the company.  You just 

heard him say one more time that he is filing Mr. Colucci's directive, 

period.  That has not been brought through the three CEOs.   

I mean, we posted a bond at 5:00 on Friday.  As of 5:00 on 

Friday, there were three CEOs with equal authority that were supposed 

to run this company.  

Now he gets hired on Monday apparently by Mr. Colucci, 

apparently with company funds, and they don't tell Mr. Miller this or the 

other CEO King?  I mean, it's unbelievable, Your Honor.  And then, to 

suggest that we're the problem? 

THE COURT:  I mean, ultimately, and this is how I look at this.  

And right now, I have allegations, but I don't have facts.  There's always 

two sides to the story, I will say that.   

I'm quite sure whatever assertion is being made on that issue, 

Mr. Miller's counsel will probably have -- like to have an opportunity to 
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respond.   

MS. SUGDEN:  Yes, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  Right, ma'am?   

MS. SUGDEN:  Yes, Your Honor, we do.  We certainly have a 

response.   

THE COURT:  Yeah, and so, what I think -- and this is a 

fairly -- and here's my point.  This is something that has to be vetted.  I'm 

not going to make a determination today on this issue, because there 

were similar allegations made regarding Mr. Colucci and his 

independence.  I didn't take him off the Board.   

You know, I just put somebody there that I -- that was alleged 

to be truly independent.  We'll find out, you know.  My mind's really open 

on that, but that's kind of how I look at it because at the outset, they 

were arguing for him to be off the Board.  I remember this case.   

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, I wanted to --  

THE COURT:  There were issues regarding whether or not -- I 

mean, I remember this, too.  There was an issue regarding the timing of 

the termination of Mr. Farnsworth, et al, because they were requesting 

an independent investigation.  

MR. PARKER:  That's right.   

THE COURT:  I remember the facts.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, and I just wanted to add to what 

Mr. Kemp said in terms of agreeing to a TR -- a OST.  On behalf of Mr. 

Vanderbilt and Ms. King, we would not oppose an OST on the issue.   

We would like to see, however, the actual fee agreement.  
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Certainly the model rules in Nevada observed by Nevada that there is a 

written fee agreement.   

So we'd like to see that fee agreement between Ballard Spahr 

and Vinco Ventures and I'd like to see who signed it.  So if he could 

provide that as a part of any motion, we would appreciate that.  I want to 

make sure that was on the record.   

And then, finally, Your Honor, your recollection is spot on.  I 

asked that the CEOs be Ms. King and Mr. Farnsworth.  I didn't want Mr. 

Colucci involved at all.  The Court did not go with my suggestion.   

THE COURT:  Yeah.   

MR. PARKER:  The Court didn't go with Mr. Connot's 

suggestion.   

THE COURT:  Right.  And I kind of looked at it -- I guess we 

all have different definitions of maintaining the status quo.  Mine was 

more of I want to make sure the company can move forward, because 

there was a lot of issues going on notwithstanding the fact that we even 

had bandwidth problems with all the investors listening in to the 

hearings.  And that's a big issue.   

And trust me on this.  I believe -- I fully believe in public 

access.  There's no question about that, but we couldn't function 

because of bandwidth and the computers were crashing and all these 

things, you know.  So I got some guidance from the Chief Judge.  

But my point is this.  This is business court.  Things kind of 

move a little faster.   

Sir, you can file whatever you feel is appropriate.   
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I'm not going to make a decision regarding their request 

because they can make a specific request asking that, because at the 

end of the day, and this is what I like to do, and I think this is most 

important from a historical perspective, I like to vett issues, right?  And 

maybe counsel wants to chime in when the appropriate time occurs 

representing Mr. Miller.  

And so, I respect your position, sir.  All I'm saying is file a 

motion.  I'll sign an order shortening time.  We'll get it on real quick.   

MR. TASKA:  We will, Your Honor.  I just want to emphasize 

that the emergent nature of this -- because the company -- Your Honor's 

intention was that the company function.   

It is not functioning.  This is dysfunction and it's dysfunctioning 

in a way that favors Defendants, because it's 2 to 1.  They win every 

vote, every time.  

So anything that takes place the next few days until my 

motion's heard is going to be 2 to 1.  So that's where we are.   

THE COURT:  All right, okay.   

MR. KEMP:  Your Honor, on the three remaining motions.   

THE COURT:  Yes, sir.   

MR. KEMP:  The third one on the payroll, I would suggest we 

continue that a week to see where we're -- I'm assuming that the three 

CEOs are going to continue to authorize the payroll, but I don't know 

that.  So I would suggest we continue it for a week.   

THE COURT:  Why wouldn't we continue with the payroll?   

MR. KEMP:  I'm not trying to raise the issue now, Your Honor.  
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I'm just trying to continue the motion -- 

THE COURT:  Right.  

MR. KEMP:  -- in case it becomes an issue.   

I would think they would continue payroll, but I don't know.  

You know, I -- maybe after paying all this money to Ballard Spahr and 

875,000 to the other firm, all of a sudden, money's not that big of an 

issue now.  Maybe they will continue the payroll.  I don't know.   

MR. TASKA:  So, Your Honor, I -- our position on this motion's 

is it's moot.  I mean, we made the payroll.  I don't know why he filed his 

motion.  Maybe just another vehicle to take further shots at us.  I'm not 

sure.   

But the -- as far as I understand, again, I'm very new to the 

case, but what I was told was that the payroll has been paid.  And so, 

the motion is moot.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, just to make Mr. Taska aware of 

why it was filed, the motion was actually submitted to the Court on the 

15th of August before we started the hearing on the 16th, 17th, and 

18th.  

So it was done for purposes of making sure that those 

employees got paid.  I believe because Mr. Taska was not involved, 

perhaps he's not up to speed in terms of timing of the filings, but that's 

why it was done.  

And the Court made that a priority.  And the Court said several 

times, and this keep -- this rings in my head all the time, it resonated I 

think with everyone in the room.  
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The Court said I am concerned with the preservation of the 

health of this company.  He repeated that at least two or three times.   

And so, you wanted to make sure those employees got paid.  

And I believe the authority you've already vested with is three CEOs, 

allow them to continue with the preservation of the health of the 

company, including of course, paying the employees to make a payment 

of any kind.  

So I agree with Mr. Kemp, I don't think there's a reason that 

the Court needs to take this motion up now because I think you've given 

the authority to this three CEOs to handle getting these employees paid 

timely and not violating any labor laws.   

MR. KEMP:  Judge, I just wanted it to be continued.  I mean, 

because we might get in a situation like we're having now, where 

Colucci does whatever the hell he wants to do and it doesn't matter what 

the other two CEOs say.   

You know, so he may go ahead and fire these people anyway.  

I don't have information that he's going to do that, but I don't have 

information he's not going to do that.  

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. KEMP:  So all I'm suggesting is continue it a week in 

case it becomes an issue.   

THE COURT:  All right, sir?   

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, I think he can file a new motion if it 

becomes an issue.  This motion is moot.   

And again, the invective directed toward Mr. Colucci -- they 
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have shoved Mr. Colucci out and they're acting like Mr. Colucci's the one 

who's running around like a wild man here.  He's been shut out of 

everything.  So that's ridiculous.   

THE COURT:  Yeah, well, here's one of the -- this is very, very 

important to point out.  It is.  And I think it's implicit in one of my status 

checks to address this issue because it -- as far as functioning, and this 

is important to point out, when it comes to the day-to-day operations of 

the company, I think it would be burdensome on the company when it 

comes to making administrative decisions vis a vis making payroll, to 

have to run to Court for that, right?   

MR. PARKER:  Right. 

THE COURT:  She shouldn't have to file a motion for that.   

And in order to cut that off as to being an issue, that's one of 

the reasons why I set a status check on August 31st of 2022, because 

it's right here, status check, expiration of the 8/17/22 order/payment to 

vendors and salaries.  

You know, and my point is nobody should have to file a motion 

for that.  This is an ongoing business, right, worth millions of dollars, tens 

of millions of dollars.  And they have payroll obligations.  

And so, as a trial court, I'm not going to get involved in the 

day-to-day operations of a corporation or a company.  If I wanted to do 

that, I just appoint a receiver and have them report to me, right?   

And the reason why I brought that up, I mean, I brought that 

up sua sponte at the last hearing.  And I think that's what we ultimately 

ended up with a compromise so you're more up to speed.   
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But I mentioned it, but I said look, I would never do that 

without it being appropriately vetted because I don't know if this meets 

the requirement under the receivership statute in the state of Nevada, 

but we need somebody independent to do something to keep this 

company moving.   

So that's so you can understand a little bit of the history, 

because there's a lot of moving parts as far as this case is concerned.  

And so, anyway, it's moot.   

I'll go ahead and we'll -- I'll -- we'll -- I'll administratively take 

that matter off calendar because we're going to address that on the 31st.  

And that's prior to the next payroll, right?   

MR. KEMP:  Yes, Your Honor.  

MR. PARKER:  That's right, Your Honor.  The last payment 

was the 19th. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, there's a reason why I set these up this 

way, right, because I was concerned about that.   

MR. PARKER:  That's correct, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  So that's a nonissue.  We'll address that.  

And I guess there were issues regarding payment to vendors.  

Okay, all right.  So let's go on to the next one.   

MR. KEMP:  Judge, why don't we take the easy one, which is 

the expedited discovery and the appointment of special master.  Okay, I 

read their motion last night.  I mean, different offer, different view, okay? 

When we brought this up whether or not the case was 

complex, and I'm reading from page 78 of the August 17th transcript 
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Wednesday: 

The Court:  I think this case would meet the definition of 

complex litigation, right?   

Me:  I say I agree, but it doesn't say that on the transcript.   

Mr. Connot:  "I tend to think so".   

That's Vinco's attorney saying that.  Not the new Vinco 

attorney.  Says it's not complex.   

Your Honor, I don't want to go through bunches of facts and 

issues, but I mean, this is a pretty complex case.  And so, we think a 

special master would assist us.  And you can see basically both sides 

are not agreeing to anything at this point, so a special master's even 

more necessary.   

THE COURT:  All right, we'll hear from the Opposition.   

MR. TASKA:  So, Your Honor, I didn't hear counsel advocate 

for the expedited discovery.  So I'd like just some clarification as to 

whether that's something you're still seeking? 

MR. KEMP:  No, we do want expedited discovery, Your 

Honor, because what we're anticipating is that there's a preliminary 

injunction hearing like I said before sometime in middle of September, 

late September.  So we'd like to get these depositions going.   

MR. TASKA:  So, your know, as Your Honor is aware, 

expedited discovery is not the norm.  It requires good cause to be 

shown.  

I think that counsel's comment about this -- Mr. Connot's 

comment about this case being complex probably was aimed at the way 
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they are trying to spin what this case is about.  

From our perspective, the case is very simple and it's very 

narrow.   

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. TASKA:  Our claims are whether their side -- whether 

their clients were properly fired.  And that's a very narrow issue.  I don't 

think that a special master is necessary to deal with that issue.   

Perhaps what they could do is once they file their own 

pleading and have their own claims of record in this case, that they think 

make the case complex, they can ask for a special master at that point.  

But right now, they've created no record to show that this case is 

complex.  As far as the motion for -- so that's the special master.   

As far as the expedited discovery goes, again, we're not sure 

what it is that they want to get.  If it's expedited discovery on the issue of 

Mr. Colucci's independence, again from our perspective, that's a 

nonissue.   

They still lose.  They still lose that day of the vote even if Mr. 

Colucci was interested, not independent, they still lost the vote 2 to 1 

where their clients were fired.  So we think that's a nonissue.   

So no expedited discovery is necessary on that issue.  And 

there's nothing in the case at this point that shows that a special master 

is needed in the absence of them filing any claims and our claims being 

very straightforward.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, let me just start out by asking, do 

you have any questions regarding the complexity of this case?  I don't 
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want to spend a lot of time --  

THE COURT:  Well --  

MR. PARKER:  -- given what you've already heard over three 

days prior to -- 

THE COURT:  -- these are my thoughts.  I don't mind sharing 

with everyone.   

MR. PARKER:  Please.   

THE COURT:  Each party has a different position as far as the 

complexity of the case is concerned.  

I understand the Plaintiff's position.  Just as important, I 

guess, both Defendants have positions regarding I guess what ultimately 

resulted in the make-up of the Board in this case, right?   

And it starts -- it's my recollection, it starts questioning the 

conditions and circumstances upon which Mr. Colucci became a Board 

member, right?  And they're going to the very outset.   

And so, as a trial judge, I mean, you have to look at it from this 

perspective.  I'm not saying who's right or wrong as far as their 

respective positions are concerned.  

Notwithstanding that, I don't think either side gets an 

opportunity to look at the judge and say look, Judge, this is how the case 

should proceed, because both the parties have an opportunity to ferret 

out these vis a vis discovery facts that support their positions.  I mean, I 

get that.   

And so, it might be very simple.  My impression was complex 

because we were dealing with what appeared to be fairly significant 
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corporate governance issues, right?  That's what we're dealing with 

here.  

And so, I guess Mr. Connot kind of agreed to a certain extent, 

but he didn't look at it as being that simple.  I understand you have a 

different viewpoint and lawyers can do that.  They can bring fresh eyes 

to the issues that are being litigated.  

And so, that's the way I see it.  I mean, whether it's ultimately 

complex or not, it does come down to in a general sense what would be 

all the claims asserted in this case.   

I don't mind saying this.  I've never seen lawyers that are 

involved in this case involved in anything straightforward and 

uncomplicated.  I can probably take judicial notice of that.   

MR. PARKER:  Yeah, absolutely.   

THE COURT:  I mean, if this was a rear end motor vehicle 

accident, I would anticipate it wouldn't be straightforward and 

complicated based on the lawyers involved.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, I take that as a compliment for 

everyone.  Maybe not so much, but you're right.  And typically, Your 

Honor, when you start a case off with the filing of a TRO ex parte, 

because you're concerned about --  

THE COURT:  Well, procedurally, it's a different case.  You 

start with the complaint, and answer, counterclaims.  It's in a different 

position.  

But it's my recollection these are the -- this is the exact type of 

case that Justice Hardesty envisioned when he was one of the justices 
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behind the creation of business court.   

MR. PARKER:  That's right.   

THE COURT:  Right?  This is like, yeah, we have a lot of 

formalities.  And of course, we do that in business court, but you got to 

jump in, Judge.  You got to get involved in the case, because lawyer -- I 

mean, the parties sometimes pay extra money, they get a business court 

judge.   

Business court judge is here.  He's involved in discovery 

disputes and all those things in order to facilitate and prevent a case 

from sitting on the docket for two and a half, three years.   

MR. PARKER:  That's right.  And I -- for some reason, I 

cannot reconcile why the Plaintiff wouldn't want these issues vetted and 

figured out as soon as possible for the health of the company.  Why 

would you want this to go longer?  It makes no sense.  

The reason why they ask for an ex parte TRO is because they 

want an expedited decision from this Court.  They didn't give us 30 days' 

worth of notice.   

They came to the Court without us, without notification, which 

is allowed under the Rules for certain circumstances because they 

wanted a quick resolution to this.  And they set a motion up for 

preliminary injunction.   

We're simply saying we also want this decision or resolution to 

be arrived to as quickly as possible.  One way to do it, of course, is 

through discovery on an expedited basis.  

The difference between a normal case, 16.1 governed, versus 
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16 is that the business court judge gets their hands around the case and 

then allows us to do discovery we need to do and quite often an 

expedited basis, not unlike the lengthy case that Mr. Miller and I were 

against each other on and Mr. Kemp and I worked for two years.  And 

we took discovery, a preliminary injunction hearing, a TRO hearing, and 

a trial within months.   

And so, I cannot see for the life of me why the Plaintiff 

wouldn't want the discovery done as quickly as possible.  If the case 

turns out to be simple, great.  Probably takes them a lot less discovery 

than it takes us -- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. PARKER:  -- but it could be done quickly.  And certainly, 

we suggested Troy Hale [phonetic] as a special master, Your Honor.  

He's handled significant cases in this jurisdiction as complex as this one.  

And I would think that he would be suitable for this case.   

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, if I could just respond to that?   

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. TASKA:  I -- again, I think that the reason we don't want 

expedited discovery is because they want to take expedited discovery 

on issues that they haven't even pled yet.   

What I would like -- this motion at a minimum is premature.  

Let them plead their claims.  The claims and the allegations in their 

counterclaims and their affirmative defenses will frame the issues on 

which the parties get to take discovery.   

And then, the Court can decide whether expedited discovery 
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is necessary, whether a special master is necessary.   

Right now, the claims pled in the case are my client's claims, 

Vinco's claims, that the Defendants are fired.  That takes --  

THE COURT:  Well, it's actually more than that.  There's 

allegations in the complaint of civil conspiracy, breach of fiduciary duty --  

MR. TASKA:  Well --  

THE COURT:  -- aiding and abetting, fiduciary duty.  It's a 

much different case than that.   

MR. TASKA:  Fair enough, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  Declaratory relief.  Those are the four claims 

for relief set forth in this case.   

MR. TASKA:  Fair enough, Your Honor.  I -- we -- our 

perspective is that still is not going to require -- I mean, we're talking 

about a very limited period of time that the Defendants went rogue and 

started acting on behalf of the company after they were fired.  So it's not 

going to take a whole lot of discovery for us to get that done.   

Those are the claims in the case.  The Court should base its 

decision on the scope of discovery including related matters such as 

whether to appoint a special master, such as whether to expedited 

discovery on the allegations and claims in the case.  That's what frames 

the scope of discovery.   

They have no claims.  Our claims don't require that at this 

point.  So at a minimum, in our view, this is premature.   

If after they file the claims and the pleadings are closed and 

framed, we could probably work something out with them, but right now, 
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I don't think we should be designating in this case as complex or to 

appoint a special master, which is going to cost the party money and the 

company.  It's just premature at this point.   

THE COURT:  Now tell me this.  And I have a question for you 

in this regard.  In light of the current make-up of the Board, and as it 

relates to the Board of Directors and how we arrived at -- in the position 

we're in today, don't you think there has to be discovery regarding those 

specific issues?   

I'm not necessarily talking about all the claims for relief that's 

set forth in the complaint filed by the Plaintiff or all the claims that 

potentially that the Defendants will file in their answer as far as their 

counterclaims are concerned.  I'm focusing on the issue that appears to 

be really, really important.   

And it stems from the TRO in this case.  And that focuses on 

the Board make-up.   

MR. TASKA:  So, Your Honor, the reason I don't think this is 

complex, I said this a few times, but maybe I said it a little too quickly.  

But what I want Your Honor to understand is that let's say Colucci is 

everything that they're saying he is.  Let's say he is devil incarnate, 

never should have been on the Board.   

Our position in the case is that there was still a validly called, 

validly noticed meeting.  There was a quorum of directors at that 

meeting, okay, of four, not the five because we're taking Colucci out 

because he's the devil incarnate.  So we have four.   

One of the directors at that meeting where the Defendants 
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were fired abstained.  Two voted yes, one voted no.   

So it's not complicated, Your Honor.  You don't have to get 

into the issues of Board composition.  They were fired by a valid action 

of the Board.   

THE COURT:  But the question is --  

MR. TASKA:  Even if you accept everything they say is true. 

THE COURT:  Well, but the question is, was that a valid 

composition of the Board? 

MR. TASKA:  Why would it not have been?   

THE COURT:  I don't know that.  I can't -- you're asking -- 

MR. TASKA:  Well, I haven't heard anything from them. 

THE COURT:  Wait, wait, wait. 

MR. TASKA:  All they've done is cast aspersions on Mr. 

Colucci. 

THE COURT:  Wait, wait, wait, what I'm saying is this.  I 

don't -- that's an issue.  That's all I'm saying potentially.  

MR. TASKA:  And --   

THE COURT:  You know, maybe you win on it, maybe you 

don't, but it's an issue, but I can't rule as a matter of law. 

MR. TASKA:  Understood, Your Honor, and I'm not asking you 

to.  All I'm saying is that's the only issue right now in the case, okay?  

And that issue is relatively simple to resolve.  And for us, it's just not a 

case where we need a special master appointed or expedited discovery.  

We need to --  

THE COURT:  Well --  
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MR. TASKA:  -- just take discovery on that issue.  If they --  

THE COURT:  See, this is what you're going to have to do.   

MR. TASKA:  Yeah.   

THE COURT:  I kind of understand at least for now maybe not 

the necessity for a special master.  I don't mind saying this, but you're 

going to have to convince me why don't we wouldn't have expedited 

discovery to ferret out all these specific issues as it pertains to Board 

composition, corporate governance, the refuse -- termination based 

upon -- no, the timing of the termination of Board members as a result of 

the requests for an investigation, those types of things, you know.  

And I don't know the answer to that, but it does seem to me, 

and I don't mind saying this, that it would benefit this ongoing business 

concern to have those types of issues resolved within a relatively short 

period of time, right?  That's my point.   

And some of the other things might be flying down the road, 

potentially cross-claims -- counterclaims I should say.  I don't know.  I 

mean, I don't know what the Defense is going to do.  It's their right.  I 

can't predict in the future, but it seems to me there's certain segments of 

the discovery in this case that should be expedited.   

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, that may be true, except that we 

haven't even seen what they want yet.  They haven't told us what they 

want in terms of discovery.  I mean, it's really hard to respond to this, 

because I don't know what I'm punching back with.   

MR. KEMP:  I told them last week what they wanted. 

THE COURT:  I mean, I'm quite sure you'll get some 
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interrogatories and requests for production of documents and there 

might be some depositions and those type of things.   

And that's kind of my point.  I mean, I don't mind saying this.  I 

mean, I remember -- which I found really fascinating from my first law 

clerk when I was on the bench -- appointed 17 years ago, I did a name 

search under the old backstone [phonetic] system.  I don't think you can 

do that today.  And it would reflect how many actions a specific lawyer 

filed.   

There was only one problem.  The system stopped at 1,000.  

She told me my name had 1,000 next to it, right?   

Here's my point.  In every one of those cases, I had no clue 

what the adverse party was going to do from a discovery perspective.  

Some are very aggressive.  Some aren't.   

And so, I just did what I had to do.  And so, here, I have no 

clue as to what you're going to do from a discovery perspective.  I have 

no clue as to what Mr. Kemp or Mr. Parker's going to do.   

From a historical perspective, I would anticipate they're going 

to be pretty aggressive.  Notwithstanding that, they got a right to do what 

they want to do, you know, on those key issues.   

And the thing about it is, once again, I don't mind saying this, I 

thought that was the purpose of business court, right, to get some of 

these issues resolved very quickly, right?   

That's why you paid for the filing fee -- I mean, the prior 

counsel on behalf of your client.  They paid more money to get here.   

And I don't mind saying that one of the disadvantages of being 
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a business court judge is sometimes you have to get involved in 

discovery issues.   

I'd much rather have the Discovery Commissioner here, but I 

can't, right?  I have to hear it.  

And so, I mean, I kind of get it.  Maybe a special master once  

-- assuming there's an answer on file and there's counterclaims filed, 

maybe -- and we can always re-visit these issues as far as special 

master, but I think expedited discovery focusing on what the material 

issues are vis a vis the Board make-up is something that it's an issue.  

And maybe the case resolves much quicker in that regard.  I don't know.   

MR. KEMP:  And, Judge, just responding to a couple other 

points, you know, he says a special master's too expensive.  They just 

spent 875 grand on the New York firm.  I mean, I don't think Special 

Master Hale is billing 175 grand on all his special master appointments 

in the last two years.  I'd be surprised.  So -- and I don't think special 

master costs are really that significant.   

And then -- 

THE COURT:  Well, I don't think it's -- I don't think that's the 

real cost.  To me, I was looking at it through this lens.  When does it 

become necessary?   

MR. KEMP:  Well, I think it's going to become necessary the 

day after I notice the first deposition because counsel's going to stand 

up and say, that's not relevant, Mr. Kemp.  This is just a firing case.   

You know, and I'm saying, wait a minute, didn't you hear the 

judge say that, you know, the special director independence and his 
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financial, did you hear that?   

And you say no, no, no.  And then, I'm going to have to file -- 

they refuse to.  

THE COURT:  Well, I can tell you this.  This is the one 

difference I will say, Mr. Kemp, is this.  And this doesn't have an impact 

on whether I appoint a special master today.  But if I don't, he doesn't 

hear that.  I will have to hear that.   

MR. KEMP:  You will have to hear that.   

THE COURT:  And here's and this is one of the things I don't 

mind saying.  I understand discovery.  I understand proportionality.  I 

understand you can't instruct witnesses not to answer unless it's 

attorney-client, right?   

And so, in a general sense, I think what my expectations 

would be that there'd be no need to call me because if you do, that 

shouldn't happen, right?   

MR. KEMP:  Judge, the --  

THE COURT:  Unless it's attorney-client privilege.   

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, the other problem we laid out before is that 

there's people in Florida, there's people in New York, there's people in 

Canada.  You know, it's not just, you know, I can call on a bunch of 

people, drive down from Summerlin, let's do the two depositions.   

THE COURT:  I understand.   

MR. KEMP:  And that's why I think a special master would 

be -- because I'm assuming some of these people are going to get their 

own counsel and whether at Colucci's direction or not, fight this -- fight 
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the deposition notice.   

THE COURT:  Well, I can see it.  Whether or not you're going 

to have to get it re-issued in another jurisdiction.  

MR. KEMP:  Uh-huh.   

THE COURT:  Whether they're going to file an opposition 

there and how we deal with it.  And --  

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, I mean, and I don't think you want to deal 

with all that, Your Honor.  That's why I think a special master is 

appropriate.   

And I think like us, like you, like opposing counsel, it takes a 

while to get up to speed on this case, because there's a lot of moving 

parts, a lot of different names, a lot of different connections.  So I 

would -- I think we need a special master sooner as opposed to later.   

His other point was that these Defendants went rogue, okay.  

You know, we're right back to where started the last week with we're 

rogue Defendants.  

If you remember, Wednesday night, when they had a $96 

million bank loan that was coming due, that would have ruined the whole 

company, us rogue Defendants had to bail them out.  You know, Mr. 

Farnsworth had to get in there and bail them out.   

So, you know, we're rogue when they don't like us, but when 

they need us, you know, we're supposed to do what they say.   

And then, his view of independence, you know, Mr. Law sits 

next to Mr. Miller.  So now Mr. Miller's an independent.   

But Mr. Colucci's wife gets over 200 grand.  His company 
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works for the company.  He doesn't disclose either one of these things, 

but he's independent, you know?  It's just not consistent, Your Honor.   

But that's why I think we need expedited discovery.  We need 

to get the depositions going.  We need -- I think we need a special 

master because I think the very first letter I'm going to get from him is a 

letter saying, oh, we're not producing this person for deposition because 

he's not relevant to the firing issue.   

You know, if it's not my issue, you don't get the discovery, Mr. 

Kemp.  Go to Court, get an order.  That's where we're going to be.  So 

for that reason, Your Honor, I think we declare -- well, I mean --  

THE COURT:  Here's my next question.  From the Defense 

perspective, when do you plan on getting answers and counterclaims on 

file potentially?   

MR. KEMP:  Well, some of them are going to be third-party 

complaints because even though Mr. Colucci's the company for 

whatever he wants to do, he technically is an individual entity -- you 

know, he's separate entity.  So we have to bring him in on third-party.  

But we had the answer pretty much ready to go.  Kind of a 

rough answer.  It was roughly ready to go.  I think we could get the 

answer in what, end of the week maybe? 

[Counsel confer] 

MR. KEMP:  And then, the third-party complaint probably, you 

know, we have 20 days, but I think we could file it a little quicker. 

THE COURT:  No, I understand.  I do.  I get that.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, I don't want to add much to what 
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Mr. Kemp just said, because we've been beating this horse for a little 

while now.  

I think that if the Court did not appoint a special master, we'd 

be here on a weekly basis doing OSTs, because every deposition, the 

scope of every formal written discovery will be questioned.  

And unlike the Court, Mr. Floyd [phonetic], Hale, or any other 

special master does not have to worry about trials or hearings.   

THE COURT:  I'm starting a trial, when are we starting trial?   

THE CLERK:  Thursday afternoon.   

THE COURT:  Thursday afternoon.   

MR. PARKER:  And that's -- 

THE COURT:  We start jury selection -- no, tomorrow.  That's 

it, tomorrow? 

MR. PARKER:  And so, in going in front of a special master 

we're typically there with a call.  We can do it over Zoom or just a 

conference call.  The cost is then reduced significantly because no one's 

doing anything in person for the most part.   

And it's typically a letter, a letter indicating the dispute, all 

parties invited to a call in the afternoon or the following day, and it's 

resolved.   

That way, we don't have to file a motion.  We don't have to do 

an OST.  We don't have to have a hearing in between the Court's trial 

schedule.  

And I -- Your Honor, I have been in some complex cases 

before Your Honor.  And I've seen you handle complex cases that I was 
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not involved in.  And you've been able to manage things including 

discovery during trial.  I've seen it happen.   

But if we can avoid that at this point, certainly I believe Mr. 

Kemp's comments are well taken.  And we can avoid the OSTs, the 

motion practice, which is more expensive than simply sending a letter to 

Mr. Hale and getting a decision.   

THE COURT:  All right. 

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, like I say, I just feel like they're 

asking us to buy a pig in a poke here.  We just don't know what the 

scope of the case is.   

The whole reason -- the thing they're worried about that we're 

going to object to every discovery request, I mean, the whole reason we 

want to have an orderly Rule 16 conference is so that we can discuss 

some of those issues.  And then maybe, you know, I would never 

portend not to fight with them.   

THE COURT:  Wait, but why would you want to delay the --  

MR. PARKER:  Exactly.  

THE COURT:  -- ultimate resolution of the case because I can 

relax the 16.1 case conference requirement.  We can all agree, right?   

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, what I fear, what I'm afraid of -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.   

MR. TASKA:  -- is that their side is going to hit our side with 

discovery out the wazoo.  It's all on irrelevant issues.   

And that's what I'm concerned about.  That's why it would be 

nice to have some dialogue with them to be able to try to hammer out 
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what the proper scope of discovery is.   

And if we just order expedited discovery and appoint a special 

master, I mean, that's you know, I think that's just getting way ahead of 

ourselves and we should probably have a meet and confer and talk 

about it.   

THE COURT:  But I mean, you're -- when it comes to 

discovery issues anyway, you're supposed to meet and confer, right?  

Rule 16's little bit different.   

If I mean, I could relax and say there's no need for a Rule 16 

early case conference, but file -- make your disclosures, right?  Under 

the Rules, I can do that.   

My point is this.  I'm trying -- I think it's better to put the case in 

a position where we can speed up ultimate resolution, right?  That's my 

biggest concern.  

Because for example, I would anticipate it's better for Vinco 

Ventures, Inc. sooner than later to have the ultimate finality as far as 

some of these decisions are concerned, right?  Can't we all agree on 

that?   

Or should this case proceed for the next three years, how is 

that in the best interest of the company?   

MR. TASKA:  Well, Your Honor's going to rule how Your 

Honor's going to rule.  I'm just concerned that if you give them license 

just to conduct plenary discovery at this point, without any claims or 

affirmative defenses to cabin in what the scope of discovery is, we're just 

-- it's just going to be a free-for-all.  That's my concern.  
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THE COURT:  Yeah, they're going to get their answers, third 

party complaints, and their counterclaims on file within the next 

what -- how many -- 

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, Judge, it'll be before the first deposition 

certainly.   

THE COURT:  Right.  And I don't want to put pressure on you, 

because I wouldn't want their -- I wouldn't want anybody putting pressure 

on me to get something to them quicker than I want to do, but --  

[Counsel confer] 

MR. RULIS:  Sorry, Your Honor.  I didn't hear the question.  

What was -- 

THE COURT:  No, no, I said, sir, I just made a final comment.  

I don't want to put unnecessary pressure on to get -- I mean, you can get 

it done in ordinary course I would anticipate, but go ahead.   

MR. RULIS:  I think -- go ahead, Teddy, because we've got 

different Defendants, but --  

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. RULIS:  -- certainly I think there's a couple of different 

issues.   

We could probably have the answer on file this week by the 

end of the week.  And then, you know, we'd want at least a week to get 

counterclaims and/or third party claims filed, which I think is still -- I 

mean, that's cutting down the time frame that we're allowed, but we can 

get that done.   

MR. PARKER:  Right.  Your Honor, my -- Mr. Rulis and I were 
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discussing whether or not service was accepted on behalf of all 

Defendants.   

So we may have gotten service on one of my clients after Mr. 

Farnsworth.  So the timing is a little different.  Maybe actually next week 

when my responsive pleading is due.   

And we're still considering in part a motion to dismiss part of 

their complaint, but whenever our responsive pleading is due, we will 

have it filed timely.   

And then, I suspect within the next 10 days, which is a 

requirement for the compulsory counterclaims, we'll file those.   

But I think the Court correctly stated that the complaint that 

was filed by the Plaintiff is a lot more expansive than Mr. Taska would 

have the Court believe today.   

Certainly, the criticisms of our -- of the Defendants went 

beyond simply the July 24, 2022 meeting.  There were several claims, 

several causes of action alleged.  

And so, the discovery we're intending to form goes to the 

heart of their -- defending the heart of their complaint.   

THE COURT:  All right, I just want to look at one more point 

on the motion.  All right, this is what I'm going to do as far as expedited 

discovery.   

I'm going to grab that motion as it pertains to that issue.  And 

as far as discovery commencing from the Defense perspective is when 

they get their answer and counterclaims on file.  That would be a good 

time to start and that'll be real quick from what I understand.   
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Mr. Kemp?   

MR. KEMP:  Judge, I would point out that we have filed a 

motion to dismiss on behalf of one of the Defendants for lack of personal 

jurisdiction.  He's kind of a --  

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. KEMP:  -- he's a minor player, but he's not Mr. 

Farnsworth or Mr. Colucci.  So that -- we expect to win that motion, but if 

we lose, his answer probably won't be due for 30, 45 days.   

MR. RULIS:  Right, I believe Your Honor set a hearing for that 

on I believe it's November 28th is the hearing on the motion to dismiss 

for lack of personal jurisdiction.   

THE COURT:  Yes, it is.   

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, so I'd just like that carved out from --  

THE COURT:  Yeah, we can carve that out.  I mean, the 

discovery on the other issues.  And the reason why I think that's 

important to do, to handle that in that way, that will of course at least 

assist in the focus of whatever clams are pending in front of this Court, 

right?   

And so, and that probably would save potentially time from 

objections in the like, because if that's part of the claims, that's part of 

the claims -- or counterclaims or whatever.  And then, of course, 

every -- each side has a right to conduct discovery on those issues.   

MR. KEMP:  And I think there's a possibility they might really 

drop him from the case because I think they joined him initial just to -- on 

this SEC code issue, but maybe not.   
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THE COURT:  Just as important, too, I mean, just looking at 

the mandate of -- and it makes sense.  This makes sense, I mean, really 

and truly.   

If you look at the mandate of 16.1(f), as far as complex 

litigation is concerned, and this is what our Supreme Court I think was 

wise in recognizing at the very outset of the litigation, everything's not 

crystal clear, but this is what they say said, quote, in a potentially difficult 

or protracted, right, potentially actions that may involve complex issues, 

multiple parties, difficult legal questions, or unusual prove problems, the 

Court may upon motion for good cause shown, waive any and all 

requirements of Rule 16.1 and designate a case complex.  

And I'm not saying it will ultimately end up that way.  Say 

hypothetically, if this case ultimately went to trial, maybe it'd be very 

much narrow based upon law and motion practice and what happens in 

discovery.  But for now, it's complex, right?   

And as far as a special master, what would be his role?  

What's the request in that regard, Mr. Kemp?  I want to make sure 

because that's the one I'm questioning the necessity of -- on this at this 

time.   

MR. KEMP:  The first thing he's going to do is decide whether 

or not a deposition's relevant because as I anticipate counsel's position, 

it will be that if it's not a firing thing, we can't do the deposition.  So I 

think that's the first thing he's going to do.   

The second thing is, like I was saying, these depositions are in 

multiple states and in another country.  So I think there's going to be 
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some coordination required for that.   

And also, you got to remember, we're trying to get these 

depositions done before the preliminary injunction hearing.  So --  

THE COURT:  Yeah.   

MR. KEMP:  -- you know, whether it's 30 depositions or I don't 

know how many they want to take, 40, 20, whatever it is, that's a lot of 

depositions to be taking in six weeks, six to seven weeks.  So I think 

there's going to be a lot of coordination, Your Honor.  And those are 

things I think the special master can do.   

THE COURT:  Here's a question I haven't asked this.  Is there 

an objection from the Plaintiff's perspective of Mr. Hale?   

MR. TASKA:  No, no particular objection.  And if Your Honor 

directs a special master, but again, our position is that it's premature to 

do that at this point.   

THE COURT:  All right.  And for that, Mr. Kemp, you get the 

last word.   

MR. KEMP:  Yes, Your Honor, I think the thing I forgot is 

getting a special master up to speed isn't going to be easy either.  You 

know, he's going to have to go through the transcripts of last week's 

hearing.  He's going to have to know the names, look at the charts like 

the Court has, try to get his handle around the issues.  

You know, it's not like we can appoint a special master on 

Monday, and Tuesday, he's going to be able to make an informed 

decision.  That's not going to happen.   

So I think appointing Special Master Hale now, even though 
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the first deposition's probably at least two, three weeks out, is a good 

idea just so he can start getting his handle on this thing.   

THE COURT:  Okay, this is what I'm going to do as far the 

special master's concerned.  And I'm going to appoint Mr. Hale and I 

don't mind saying this.   

I think Mr. Hale excels in this role in this regard because I 

don't know if I would be capable of doing this from a humanistic 

perspective, because he served as special master in tens of cases in 

which I've been involved in and they've been complex cases.  

And I marvel at his ability to get orders out within an hour of 

the hearing, which I think is kind of unprecedented because I know I 

couldn't do that, right?  And he does a very good job of that.   

And so, it's -- and I just want to make sure his role is 

understood.  It's going to be to facilitate both depositions and written 

discovery in this case.   

And that's going to be his role.  I would anticipate it will have a 

primary focus on the issues pertaining to the Board.  And we can re-visit 

the necessity of him continuing on down the road as far as whether it is 

a necessity or not.   

So where does that put us?   

MR. KEMP:  Well, Judge, the final motion is the Motion on 

Special Counsel.  And again, this is back to Mr. Colucci.  When Mr. 

Colucci filled out his questionnaire, and there's two issues, I should back 

up.   

Did he make adequate disclosure?  And assuming he did and 
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he's not independent, what do we do with all the meetings that he sat 

and voted on?   

I don't think we need to reach that second issue today until we 

decide the first issue whether he's independent or not.  

So in any event, as we pointed out before, his wife got paid 

over 200 grand.  She works for I-Heart [phonetic].   

He has a company that -- named Highway Data, which does 

business with the company.  That wasn't disclosed.  The billings there 

are pretty significant.   

We are informed that there's some kind of relationship 

between him and Mr. -- is it Yang -- Wang?   

MR. RULIS:  Yang. 

MR. KEMP:  Yang.  There's two Yangs.  This is the Yang 

who's sitting in Court, Your Honor.  We are informed that there's some 

type of relationship there.  The company's paid them millions of dollars 

to do development work.  

And then, we find -- we get a letter or on some sort notification 

from Mr. Yang saying, oh, I'm out, you know.  I don't think feel like doing 

this anymore, but I'm keeping the money.  So we want to see what 

happened there, but that's the discovery on Mr. Colucci. 

Now in their opposition, their response was that, oh, we've 

hired Howard & Howard to investigate the whistleblower complaints.  

Well, first of all, the whistleblower complaints touch on this issue, but 

they touch on other issues.   

But the whistleblower investigation was, shall I say rushed?  
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They contacted us on the Thursday before the evidentiary hearing was 

started on Tuesday.  And they wanted us to stipulate to bringing five 

people in to have interviews in the Howard & Howard office in Las 

Vegas.  

We told them that wasn't possible, because we were 

preparing for the hearing, but that we would give them dates as soon as 

the hearing was over.  

Rather than do that, they interviewed Mr. Colucci.  Mr. Colucci 

told them there was no problem and Howard & Howard issued a report 

saying that there's no problem, which I consider kind of a white wash.   

I don't know how much Howard & Howard was paid, but I don't 

think that resolves the issue, but that is their response.   

So I think what we need to do is do these depositions on Mr. 

Colucci, and then, provide the information to the special counsel, but we 

need a special counsel.   

If you recall, the chairman of the Board appointed Gibson & 

Dunn to do this.  Gibson & Dunn was retained.  They agreed to do it.  

They had an eminently qualified person to do it, a former I think it was 

vice -- he was vice chairman of the SEC, but he was -- this was his area.   

So they started the investigation.  They called up Mr. Colucci 

and they said, hey, we've been retained to do an investigation.   

And Colucci fired back, kind of like they always do, Your 

Honor, I mean, you know, that's why Mr. Miller has an independent 

counsel now because at the meeting they suggested that there's some 

legal liability coming his way, you know, so they fire back.  
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So rather than simply perform the exercise of investigating, 

they fire back and they threaten Gibson & Dunn by saying that they were 

acting unethically.  So Gibson & Dunn backed out.  

So the special investigation was never or the special counsel 

determination was never made.  

So in any event, we filed a motion to appoint a special 

counsel.  We think it should be done to determine whether or not he's 

independent or not.   

I mean, you know, the counsel's standard here is if you sit 

next to someone in Court, you're not independent anymore.  You know, 

that's the standard that he applies with Mr. Miller and Mr. Law.  I'm -- I 

think I'm applying a little more stringent standard.  

And I think we're going to we're going to meet that easily, but 

we are not the ones to make the determination.  We, being Defendants 

in the case.  I think an attorney needs to make the determination.   

And where we go from there, we'll see, but I don't have any 

person in mind.  You know, I suggested Mr. Urga [phonetic].  Then I 

thought about it.  You know, Mr. Urga's a pretty good friend of mine.  I 

don't know if our friendship could survive this.  Just joking a little bit, 

Your Honor.   

But I would suggest we grant the motion.  We can pick three 

names.  They can pick three names.  We can do knock-outs, we go first, 

they go first, knock one out, and who's ever left, you know, we could do 

it that way.  

The Court could make a determination, but we do need a 
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special counsel to determine whether or not Mr. Colucci's independent.   

And everything I've seen since we filed this motion gives me 

more cause for concern.  I mean, since we filed this motion, like I said, 

he's paid $875,000 to the New York firm without informing the other two 

CEOs.   

They've hired another firm to fight everybody, including one of 

the independent CEOs without bringing it up to the CEOs.  So I am 

concerned that Mr. Colucci is just -- doesn't really understand what 

having co-CEOs means at this point.  And there are probably more 

financial interests that we need to take a look at than less.  

But in any event, someone needs to make the determination.  

That's why I think we need a special counsel.   

THE COURT:  All right.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, before Mr. Taska presents his 

opposition, Your Honor, I'm assuming you have Mr. Taska's Opposition 

in front of you?   

THE COURT:  Yes, I do right here.   

MR. PARKER:  I don't see anywhere within their Opposition 

where they addressed Mr. Colucci's failure to disclose or the $215,000 

paid to Mrs. Colucci or the $100,000 paid to Highway Data, which is Mr. 

Colucci's company through the company of Acuity.   

I don't see that addressed at all in the Opposition.  Those are 

the issues that came up during the first three days or three days of our 

hearings in the last week.  And they're not addressed at all in their 

opposing papers.   
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I also -- we -- these motions were filed or presented to the 

Court prior to the Court's order of last week.  And given the Court's 

order, I'm not 100 percent sure that you've not already given that 

authority to the see -- the three CEOs to hire independent counsel for 

this purpose.  

Having the investigation done benefits the company.  I can't 

see --  

THE COURT:  Oh, I just want to make sure I'm clear on that 

because it's my understanding that's required by NASDAQ rules and 

regulations.  Is that correct?   

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely.  And so, I believe you've already 

given the authority to the three CEOs to select an independent 

attorney's firm to do this investigation into the proper disclosures or the 

adequacy of disclosures given by Mr. Colucci and whether or not the 

amounts paid, the compensation paid to he and his wife exceed what's 

allowed under the NASDAQ rules.   

So I think that the motion -- I agree with Mr. Kemp 100 percent 

that special counsel needs to be appointed.  I'm just not sure given the 

authority you've already placed with the CEOs that Mr. Miller does not 

have the current authority to select that independent counsel for 

purposes of performing and completing the disclosure evaluations of Mr. 

Colucci. 

So I didn't want to go very long, Your Honor, but certainly 

harkening back to what Mr. Taska said earlier, and I kind of tried to write 

it down.   

RESP251



 

Page 58  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

He kept trying to pigeon-hole this case into the July 24th 

action of the Board, but if the Court -- if he were to understand some of 

the concerns the Court had last week and I think there also prep -- also 

available -- still present today, is that Mr. Colucci was not an appropriate 

Board member, either independent or not independent Board member.   

Then perhaps he's not and would not have been at this point a 

CEO.  And so --  

THE COURT:  I'll frame it slightly different -- 

MR. PARKER:  Go ahead, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  -- because that's not necessarily my concern. 

MR. PARKER:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  That's an issue that's being raised by the 

Defense in this case.  And specifically, and so it's an issue being raised.  

And so, consequently, I can't ignore it.   

I have to accept it and then permit potential discovery on that 

issue and the like because I will say this.  I'm not necessarily well versed 

in the running of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.  I'm 

not.  You know, I don't even know if federal judges deal with those 

issues all the time.   

MR. PARKER:  Right. 

THE COURT:  But there are certain sections or rules that 

require an independence, Board members or certain number of Board 

members as it pertains to publicly-traded companies.   

MR. PARKER:  That's right.   

THE COURT:  And so, and I recognize that.  And at the end of 
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the day, potentially, and I don't know and I'm quite sure they'll be 

litigation on this issue if the allegations are supported by facts that he 

wasn't truly independent, maybe that could have been impacted his 

appointment on the Board.  I don't know.   

But I would imagine this fact that knowing that there's probably 

a lot of well-developed litigation on this specific issue on a federal level, 

that there's case law out there that discusses this special issue.  

And for example, I don't know what the learned treatises might 

be when it comes to the U.S. Security and Exchange Commissions, but 

I'm quite sure -- and the rules and regulations, but I would be shocked if 

there's not stuff out there.   

MR. PARKER:  Okay.  Of course, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  You know, and so that's kind of how I looked at 

that issue, but the bottom line is it's an issue that's been raised.  And it 

was raised at the very outset of the TRO hearing and so on and so on.   

And so, all I can say in this regard it's a fascinating issue 

raised, Mr. Parker, whether the Board has the authority to do that or 

whether I should do it independently.  I get that and I recognize that.   

MR. PARKER:  Okay, I just wanted to make sure, because I 

truly believe after the Court gave us quite a bit of time last week, 

Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday and then, of course, signed the 

order.   

I thought that order was giving or gave Mr. Miller, Mr. Colucci, 

and Ms. King as co-CEOs the authority to hire independent or special 

counsel to complete this vetting of Mr. Colucci. 
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And I would suspect as a part of that, a determination may be 

made whether or not the acts of that Board with Mr. Colucci voting on 

certain items, whether or not they had the authority to do so, and 

whether or not they're void because of his inappropriateness on the 

Board.   

So those are things that we -- I foresee getting into.  And I 

think that whomever is selected, that needs to be done as quickly as 

possible.   

So I join in -- of course, we filed the motion jointly, but I would 

like the Court to -- if the Court has already given that authority to Mr. -- to 

the -- Mr. Miller and Mr. Colucci and Ms. King, then I'm not asking the 

Court to divest them of that authority.   

If the Court is not impliedly giving them that authority, then 

we're asking the Court to do so.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  We'll hear from the Plaintiff, sir?   

MR. TASKA:  Yes, Your Honor.  So I actually think that might 

not be a bad idea to have whoever's running the company make the 

decision on whether this is necessary to do.   

But what I would ask Your Honor is that no decision on that 

matter be made until our motion is heard on the issue of the three CEOs.  

Because right now, it's 2 to 1.  They win, they win every vote.  That's 

how it works.   

So we at least would like to wait until we can present our 

motion to talk about the governance, the coalition government if you will 

before a decision is made on this motion.  
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Because right now, who's asking for the motion?  It's the two 

Defendants or the Defendants who were fired, who were running the 

company before this litigation.  And now, they're trying to run the 

company through the Court by asking the Court to order a special 

counsel to be appointed.   

That's not appropriate.  If a special counsel is to be appointed, 

it's something that the company should decide, not Defendants who 

have been fired from the case.  It shouldn't be for them to decide it.   

So I actually agree in part with my opponents on this, but I 

think that the decision also wait until we figure out who's going to be 

running this company.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, I had to get up here and address 

that last comment by Mr. Taska.  I am astounded that he would oppose 

the CEOs of this company selecting special counsel when someone 

selected his firm.  

And I don't know if the three CEOs did it or someone outside, 

someone rogue member did it.  But certainly, this Court to my 

knowledge did not give Vinco Ventures authority to hire Ballard Spahr.  

So who made that decision and who gave that authority?   

If it wasn't the three CEOs, and it wasn't this Court, we have 

issues, of course, because the expenditure is something that is not a 

routine and ordinary expenditure to my knowledge.   

So either Mr. Taska agrees that the three CEOs has -- have 

the authority or we ask the Court to make a decision.   

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, we have previewed for Your Honor 
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today a serious issue of the third CEO being compromised.  And what 

they're saying is that that compromised CEO, and Your Honor will hear 

this in full as soon as we can get it up before Your Honor, because they 

agreed to do it on OST. 

And counsel is suggesting that after we've made allegations 

and we have evidence that the third supposed neutral independent CEO 

is compromised, that that group of CEOs should make the decision on 

whether to investigate Mr. Colucci?   

I mean, that's -- it would be outrageous, Your Honor.  The 

decision needs to wait until we have an appropriate governing structure 

in place.   

MS. SUGDEN:  Your Honor, just because there's been 

several comments about this 2 to 1 -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.   

MS. SUGDEN:  Automatic, many aspersions about the 

impropriety of Mr. Miller.  So, first of all, he had obviously just gotten 

appointed on Friday the 19th.  He attended a Board meeting at 8:45 

Monday morning.   

I believe there's only one issue as far as there were several 

things to go through.  One issue was to the timing of the shareholder 

meeting.  

Several things were met to satisfaction.  I'll let you clarify, 

because I wasn't there, but it just -- there's been too many comments 

made that we can't respond regarding these allegations.   

MR. MILLER:  Your Honor, if I may.   
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THE COURT:  Yes.   

MR. MILLER:  As an officer of the Court and your appointee, 

you know, I've been reluctant to engage publicly on these issues.  I think 

that was part of the Court's order in appointing me, sending me into 

these decisions in the hopes that we could find solutions to the critical 

issues that need to be addressed, so that catastrophic things, potentially 

catastrophic things didn't arise as we pointed out in the order the 

Hudson Bay type of [phonetic].  And so, that has been the immediate 

intent.   

You know, you appointed me quite unexpectedly on Friday.  I 

worked extensively through the weekend to try to get ready, assembling 

any potential resources.  

Obviously, the order didn't come with a roadmap, but it did 

come with case law that I reviewed as to potential authority of a 

court-appointed co-CEO.  

I tried to be very mindful of that.  I had worked cooperatively 

with everybody in the company so far that I could find.  And I've made 

great efforts to try to do that.   

You know, and despite the fact that we're here as part of 

adversarial proceedings, I've tried to approach it from more of a 

business sense.   

That's why one of the first calls I made was bringing in Mr. 

Hunterton.  He's a friend of mine.  Fortunately, he's retired.  He's run two 

companies twice the size of MGM, some of the largest gaming 

companies in the world.  
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And you know, he's helped me try to navigate these issues.  

You know, there is no bias.  We'll wait to discuss that, but you know, 

because there is so much interest, Your Honor, on a Friday afternoon, I 

could see my name all over the media as this announcement came 

through.  There's a lot of interest watching these proceedings.   

You know, the shortest answer for the decisions that we've 

been able to reach is that over the weekend, there was a lot of 

suggestion that I immediately intervene.  I was taking some time to get 

up to speed.   

We had a call scheduled as co-CEOs at 10:00 on Monday 

morning.  And there was a strong case to be made that there was a 

decision that couldn't wait.  We accelerated that, convened at 8:45.  We 

made a unanimous decision on that issue.   

We then moved to the 10:00 meeting, where there's a whole 

litany of issues that potentially needed to be addressed.  We did our best 

to try to filter through which ones were of critical importance and which 

decisions needed to be made ultimately that this couldn't wait.  

You know, obviously, there is passionate opinions within this 

litigation, within the company.  On the couple days that I've been there 

and the individuals I've talked to, you can see the reason for the 

passion.   

There are offices all over the world.  There are people behind 

this company, the affiliated companies, subsidiaries, passionate and 

very successful executives that they've got working.  Those are 

complicated decisions that we're going to have to wrestle with.  
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I don't know if there's a roadmap for the process that we're 

going to try to follow.  I try to be deferential to the culture of the company 

as to how those decisions are made.   

We've only had one issue of dissent where we voted.  We had 

to make a decision.  I listened to, you know, as much information as I 

could in order to try to ratify the decision.  We'll talk about that I'm sure in 

the week to come as the decision that was ultimately made.  

But to say that this is continued stalemate is not accurate.  We 

are moving in a slow and deliberate pace.  I took great interest in trying 

to read the Court's minutes and heard the Court grappling with this kind 

of idea, saying that you weren't prepared to render decisions on a lot of 

the issues for which you hadn't heard a lot of evidence and just didn't 

know the facts.   

I tried to take a similar approach.  And I've heard, you know, 

Your Honor's news about the foundations of Nevada's business court.  

I'm not sure whether or not when the Court appointed me, the Court was 

aware of my participation in that original debate.   

But I had advocated as Secretary of State that I believe that 

one of the failings of Nevada's corporate governance is once we put 

ourselves out there and try to be the Delaware of the West was that we 

didn't have a chancery court.   

If you listen to the business representatives across the 

country, why don't you move to Nevada?  You file here.  You may 

incorporate here.  Why don't you move your location to Nevada?  

Because we can't get our disputes resolved in the same manner as the 
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chancery court.   

Justice Hardesty in your -- as you've alluded to in his wisdom 

opted for an earlier model, that brought something like this in for some 

more creative approach where the Court could insert itself in attempt to 

resolve, you know, a real deadlock that could be potentially catastrophic 

for this company.  

But I believe firmly that what the Court has entrusted me to do 

in attempt to resolve here is an effort to bring stability to this company, 

so it has a chance going forward.   

And of course, I take the allegations of impropriety and lack of 

independence very seriously.  And, Judge, I don't know any of the 

participants in this case, other than the litigants, prior to showing up on 

the scene here.  I mean, where there's maybe a 24-hour period where 

I've met everybody.  I'm trying to get up to speed as quickly as possible.   

There aren't any prior relationships.  And if there were, Mr. 

Kemp and Mr. Parker and I litigated a case for a couple years, Mr. 

Parker referenced. 

I know the importance of being a corporate executive because 

my dad was unfortunately caught up in as part of a Board member of the 

Wynn Hotel in extensive litigation.   

You know, when he was governor, I watched him struggle with 

issues.  I've never seen issues that wore on him like that civil litigation.  

Mr. Kemp himself personally sued my dad during the middle of those 

proceedings.   

So if there's an allegation that I'm not prepared to step in here 
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and make the -- independent judgment that's necessary in the best 

interests of the shareholders, and in the best interests of the company, 

Judge, I'm prepared to address it immediately.  

But I felt it important for me for make a statement today in 

front of the Court as reluctant as I was to try to do that.   

Because this litigation can have catastrophic consequences 

for this company.  And I don't think that's fair.  And I don't think that was 

the intent of the Court.   

THE COURT:  I understand.  And as far as a couple of 

comments you made, sir, I agree with you.  And that's why as a trial 

judge, I can't treat this as a regular Rule 16.1 case.  It's complex 

litigation.  

I do understand the basis or the foundation of the creation of 

business court.  I've been doing now for about four plus years, five 

years.  

Before that, I handled construction defect, which is equally, as 

you probably know, very complex.   

And so, and you bring up the Wynn shareholder derivative 

litigation cases.  They were in this department.  You know, so for 

whatever reason.  

But my point is this.  And this is kind of how I look at it.  That's 

going to be decision-making for another day.   

But at the end of the day, I have to make a decision as it 

pertains to the independence -- I'm sorry, as to whether or not there 

should be a special counsel to conduct an investigation of a Board 
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member.  And that's really and truly what it comes down to.   

I do know this that -- and this is based upon my review of the 

regulations as it pertains to the corporate governance requirements 

specifically relating to the NASDAQ and the U.S. Security and Exchange 

Commission, that that's a requirement as a matter of law, right, as a 

condition to being appointed on a Board.  

And so, the way -- and I thought about this issue.  Mr. Parker 

brought up void.  When he said that I was thinking void ab initio, I don't 

know, from like from the very beginning, but I mean, I don't know if that's 

the ultimate answer, but -- because we're not there yet.  We're not even 

close to being there. 

By my point is this.  And this is kind of how I see it.  I know I 

mentioned this.  Either if I didn't appoint a special counsel to conduct an 

investigation as it pertains to a specific Board member, that doesn't 

stand for the proposition that the Defendants can't conduct their 

investigation specifically and his background as it pertains to discovery 

and the like, right? 

MR. TASKA:  Well, Your Honor actually raises a good point, 

which is that they're going to be doing all this work.  They will leave no 

stone unturned, I'm sure, when they get to take their plenary discovery 

on Mr. Colucci. 

And so, why are we doing this now?  Why are we appointing 

special counsel now?  Let them develop the facts that they need to 

develop.  Let's not have the Court, you know, sort of insert itself into this 

company any more than necessary by also appointing special counsel. 
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That's something that the three CEOs should do when the 

three CEOs -- when that issue -- when the dust finally settles on that 

issue.  It's just not something that should be done right now.  It's not 

going to slow anything down to wait a week until we get this sorted out. 

And then, I just -- 

THE COURT:  When, you're saying wait a week till we get it 

sorted out, I want to make sure I'm clearly understanding what you're 

saying? 

MR. TASKA:  I'm talking about waiting a week so that our 

motion get -- whatever the time frame is before our motion that we 

intend to file -- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. TASKA:  -- on the subject of the governance is resolved. 

And on that topic, by the way, I appreciate Mr. Miller's 

statement.  And you know, nobody's saying that Mr. Miller had some sort 

of intent here to do anything wrong.  Nobody was saying that. 

All we're saying is that -- all we know is that the person who 

showed up on the first meeting in the room with Mr. Miller was -- as his 

consigliere, I mean, what he said -- Mr. Miller said he meaning Jesse 

Law, seems to be a good resource and help make decisions that are 

necessary at this pace. 

So that I interpret to be he's going to rely on Mr. Law to be his 

consigliere.  That person is employed by the Defendant.  That's the 

point.  That's all we know at this point, Your Honor. 

I'm not saying that Mr. Miller questioning his preparedness, his 
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devotion, his sincerity in anything.  All I'm saying is somehow, Mr. Law 

was sitting in the room with Mr. Miller.  Mr. Law is with the Defendants. 

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, Mr. Taska for some reason 

believes that it's more important to investigate Mr. Miller, who's just been 

appointed as a C -- a co-CEO than to investigate a co-CEO and a Board 

member. 

Mr. Colucci is a Board member and a CEO.  Why wouldn't the 

importance of investigating that person who fills two important roles be, if 

not at least equally important, more important? 

Again, I believe you've already given that authority to the three 

CEOs.  But if the Court believes that's not implicit in the order provided 

last week, then we again ask that this Court do the same and order that 

an independent counsel be involved. 

Because any action that's taken from this point forward 

without that person, Mr. Colucci being vetted, is potentially a void, 

voidable, or as you indicated, Your Honor, void ab initio. 

And we're talking about large expenditures here, a couple of 

million dollars, we believe, were dedicated to AI Pros, which we believe 

there potentially is a conflict there with Mr. Colucci. 

The $875,000 that Mr. Kemp has referenced that we found 

was paid to Lucosky and Brookman.   

Whatever amount is being paid to Ballard Spahr, again, with 

no apparent written authority to make these expenditures or these 

retentions. 

We've not seen anything that the CEOs have been provided 
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authorizing the retention of Ballard Spahr, the payment to Lucosky and 

Brookman or anything else that may come in the interim, Your Honor. 

So we definitely need to have this done as soon as possible.  

And potentially have the Court do it if you don't believe that the three 

CEOs were given that authority. 

THE COURT:  Right, and what's your response, sir?  My 

thought, sir, in listening, they keep come -- they circle back to -- yeah.  I 

think this is how I'm going to handle it.  We don't need to go there. 

When are you getting your motion filed, sir? 

MR. TASKA:  Uh -- 

THE COURT:  As it pertains to the court-appointed 

independent tie-breaker? 

MR. TASKA:  Sure, well, we will have to huddle up after this 

hearing, but I think we can probably get it on file by Friday. 

THE COURT:  Okay, because I don't want to wait on this one.  

So today is what, Wednesday? 

THE CLERK:  Yes, sir. 

THE COURT:  All right, okay.  And if I hear it on the Order 

Shortening Time, would it be okay to set that for hearing next 

Wednesday? 

MR. PARKER:  That's when we're here as well, Your Honor. 

MR. RULIS:  We're here already. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. PARKER:  Yes, that'd be perfect. 

THE COURT:  This is what I'm going to do.  And I don't 
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necessarily like to punt, but when I read my order, and I think this is what 

Mr. Parker was referring to, and this is on page 3 of the order at line 19, 

paragraph 3, the three CEOs for Vinco Ventures are to equally share 

responsibilities and decision-making authority.  And it's implicit in that. 

MR. PARKER:  That's what I thought, too. 

THE COURT:  But what I'm going to do is this, before that final 

determination is made by the Board, I'm going to at least given an 

opportunity to hear the issues as it pertains to Mr. Miller. 

MR. PARKER:  Sounds good. 

THE COURT:  That's how I'm going to do it. 

MR. TASKA:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, I think that's the fairest way to handle 

that.  All right, does that cover everything? 

MR. PARKER:  It does, Your Honor. 

MR. RULIS:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  All right.  My Law Clerk says we're very busy 

next Wednesday, so we have to keep it short. 

MR. KEMP:  Do you want -- would you want to put is on a 

special time at the end perhaps? 

THE COURT:  No, no, what it is, I think we're in trial. 

MR. KEMP:  You're in trial, you're in trial. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, we're in trial. 

MR. KEMP:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  So but we'll get it done.  We'll do what we have 

to do. 
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MR. KEMP:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  But that's what we'll do.  All right. 

MR. TASKA:  Thank you so much, Your Honor.  Have a good 

day. 

THE COURT:  Everyone, enjoy your weekend. 

[Proceedings concluded at 11:51 a.m.] 

* * * * * * * 

 
 
 
ATTEST:   I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the 

audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability. 
      

       
     _____________________________ 

      Chris Hwang 
      Court Reporter 
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Will Kemp, Esq. (#1205) 
Nathanael R. Rulis, Esq. (#11259) 
n.rulis@kempjones.com
Madison P. Zornes-Vela, Esq. (#13626)
m.zornes-vela@kempjones.com
KEMP JONES, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
T: (702) 385-6000
F: (702) 385-6001
Attorneys for Defendant
Theodore Farnsworth

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

Defendant Theodore Farnsworth (“Farnsworth” or “Defendant”), by and through his 

attorneys of record, the law firm of Kemp Jones, LLP, hereby submits his Opposition to Plaintiff 

Vinco Ventures, Inc.’s (“Vinco Ventures”) Motion for Clarification of the Court’s August 17, 

2022 Order Pertaining to Meetings of the Board of Directors on Order Shortening Time.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

VINCO VENTURES, INC., 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

THEODORE FARNSWORTH, LISA 
KING, RODERICK VANDERBILT, and 
ERIK NOBLE, 

Defendants. 

CASE NO.:  A-22-856404-B 
DEPT. NO.:  16 

DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO 
PLAINTIFF VINCO VENTURES, INC.’S 
MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION OF 
THE COURT’S AUGUST 17, 2022 ORDER 
PERTAINING TO MEETINGS OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

Hearing Date: September 7, 2022 
Hearing Time: 1:30 p.m. 

Case Number: A-22-856404-B

Electronically Filed
9/6/2022 4:57 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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 This Opposition is made and based upon the Memorandum of Points and Authorities 

submitted herewith, the exhibits attached hereto, the pleadings and papers on file herein, and any 

oral argument permitted by the Court. 

DATED this 6th day of September, 2022. 

KEMP JONES, LLP 
 
/s/  Madison Zornes-Vela   
Will Kemp, Esq. (#1205) 
Nathanael R. Rulis, Esq. (#11259) 
Madison P. Zornes-Vela, Esq. (#13626) 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Attorneys for Defendant 
Theodore Farnsworth  

 

 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. 

INTRODUCTION 

 Plaintiff’s Motion purportedly seeks clarification on the Court’s prior order regarding 

Board meetings. Like Plaintiff’s August 31, 2022 Motion to modify the Court’s Order appointing 

the three Co-CEO’s, this motion is another unfounded attempt by Plaintiff to re-write history and 

seek reconsideration of one of the Court’s prior orders.  

On August 17, 2022, this Court entered an Order, which, among other things, requires that 

any meeting of the Board of the Directors be held only if: (1) unanimous consent by the Board 

members to a meeting, with at least 48-hours’ notice and an agenda accompanying the notice; or 

(2) by order of the Court.  The Order further provides that the Board members must not 

unreasonably withhold their agreement to hold a board meeting and/or waive the 48-hours’ notice 

requirement.  

 The unanimous consent requirement for all Board meetings going forward was of 

particular importance to Defendants because of the events that transpired in July and August 2022, 
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which led to the instant litigation and many of the issues raised herein. Following Gibson Dunn’s 

aborted investigation and the issues it identified regarding Mr. Colucci’s independence, Mr. 

Colucci and his Board allies effectuated a series of tumultuous Board meetings in an apparent 

effort to remove current Company management and gain control over operations.  Mr. Colucci 

and his Board allies hijacked these meetings and crammed through numerous important decisions 

without any prior notice let alone discussion on critical corporate governance issues.  

To prevent these antics from continuing, and to assist the Court’s efforts to preserve the 

status quo and protect Vinco Ventures’s ongoing operations, Defendants proposed the unanimous 

consent requirement for all Board meetings going forward.  At the hearing wherein this term was 

discussed, counsel for Defendant Farnsworth made it clear that the intention of this provision was 

to require unanimous consent from all Board members to hold Board meetings.  This is the same 

counsel who drafted and submitted the proposed order that the Court ultimately entered as the 

August 17, 2022 Order.  There is no dispute the Court entered Defendants’ proposed position on 

this issue.  

 Despite the language of the August 17, 2022 Order and the unequivocal representations 

by counsel at the hearing and throughout the parties’ negotiations on this issue, Plaintiff now 

argues the unanimous consent requirement for Board meetings is simply Defendants’ 

“interpretation.” The Court must reject Plaintiff’s self-serving and contrived feigned ignorance. 

Plaintiff further contends this Order is unworkable, offering three unfounded and speculative 

reasons why. Because the Court’s 8/17/22 requires the Directors to not unreasonably withhold 

their consent to a Board meeting and provides a Board meeting can be held pursuant to Court 

order, Plaintiff’s arguments against the unanimous consent requirement are not persuasive. 

Defendant respectfully requests the Court deny Plaintiff’s Motion and reaffirm the unanimous 

consent requirement.  

/ / / 

 

/ / / 
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II. 

RELEVANT FACTS  

As this Court is aware, this action involves important corporate governance issues for 

Vinco Ventures and involves serious allegations regarding the actions and fitness of several Vinco 

Ventures directors, executives, and others involved in Vinco Ventures’s business operations.   

On August 17, 2022, the Court entered an Order (1) Directing Vinco Ventures, Inc. to Pay 

All Payroll Amounts Due and Owing on August 19, 2022; (2) Precluding Vinco Ventures from 

Terminating Employees; (3) Setting Limitations on Expenditures; and (4) Setting Limitations and 

Conditions Regarding Vinco Ventures Board Meetings (“8/17/22 Order”).1 The 8/17/22 Order 

requires unanimous consent for any Board meeting. Id. at ¶ 5. (“Plaintiff shall not hold any Board 

of Director meetings without 48 hours’ notice and an agenda must accompany the notice, absent 

unanimous agreement of the parties, which agreement will not be unreasonably withheld in the 

event of emergency, or order of the Court.”)  

Unanimous consent for holding Board meetings moving forward was one of Defendants’ 

unwavering requirements during the parties’ negotiations underlying the 8/17/22 Order.  This is 

because Mr. Colucci and his Board allies improperly utilized “Board meetings” to purportedly 

accomplish their hostile takeover. Between July 17, 2022 and July 24, 2022, “the Board” 

conducted a flurry of meetings wherein Colucci and his Board allies who joined his hostile 

takeover hijacked the meetings and crammed through numerous important decisions without any 

prior notice, let alone discussion on these issues.  See e.g., 8/15/22 Declaration of Roderick 

Vanderbilt at ¶¶ 15, 31-32; 8/15/22 Declaration of Lisa King at ¶¶ 13, 17, 19-20.  Additional 

meetings occurred after the Court granted Plaintiff’s ex parte request for the now-dissolved 

Temporary Restraining Order, which precluded Defendants’ involvement.  

 

1 Notice of Entry of the 8/17/22 Order was filed on August 18, 2022.  Because Plaintiff’s Motion 
refers to the August 17, 2022 Order, for the sake of consistency and clarity, Defendant will also 
refer to it as such.  
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At the continued hearing on August 17, 2022, after Plaintiff backed out of its previous 

agreement that no board meeting would be conducted without unanimous consent, the parties 

presented this as one of the remaining issues to the Court, explaining: 

MR. KEMP: Your Honor, so 4 and 5 are the points of contention at this point.  
So 4, what we proposed is that they wouldn’t hold any board meetings unless 
there’s 48 hours’, written notice, AND there’s unanimous agreement of the 
board members.  The parties agree to the board members. 

And we agree that we would not withhold consent in the event of the emergency.  
And in the event that they really need a board meeting, we withhold consent, they 
have the right to come to Court and ask the Court to authorize the board meeting. 

So that’s the proposal I thought was agreed to, but I guess it’s not now, but I 
think that’s a reasonable decision because right now, it’s 48 hours.  And we just 
want to stop this thing where everyone – notices the board meeting. 

Aug. 17, 2022 Recorder’s Transcript of Hearing Plaintiff Vinco Ventures Inc.’s Emergency 

Motion for Temporary Restraining Order and Preliminary Injunction (“8/17 Trns”), 45:19-46:6 

(emphasis added).   

In response to this proposal, Vinco counsel said that there was a need for an emergency 

board meeting that very night because of the alleged Hudson Bay default notice.  The Court then 

agreed to a Hudson Bay carve out: 

THE COURT: All right.  This is what I'm going to do.  Number one, as far as 
paragraph 4 is concerned, they’ll be a carve-out exactly like I indicated as it 
pertained to participation in the calling of the note …. 

8/17 Trns, 73:20-24.   

The Court signed Defendant Farnsworth’s proposed Order, which was consistent with Mr. 

Kemp’s and the Court’s statements on this issue.  See 8/17/22 Order.  

Until an email from John Colucci on August 27, 2022, Plaintiff never advanced the inane 

argument that there was an additional “carve out” that would allow for calling board meetings for 

any reason by giving 48-hours-and-one-second (or more) notice.  See Exhibit 1.  As Defendant 

explains herein, a 48-hour-and-one-second carve out would basically gut paragraph 5 of the 

August 17 Order in its entirety and allow Colucci and his Board allies free reign to continue the 

obstreperous conduct that triggered this litigation.  
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III. 

ARGUMENT 

A. The August 17, 2022 Order Requires Unanimous Consent from All Board Members 
to Hold a Board Meeting. 

Contrary to the Plaintiff’s contrived position, the 8/17/22 Order orders that Vinco 

Ventures Board meetings can be held only if: (1) all Board members consent to the meeting, at 

least 48-hours’ notice is provided, and an agenda accompanies the notice; or (2) by order of the 

Court. 8/17/22 Order at ¶ 5.  

Defendants’ proposed requirement for unanimous consent to hold Board meetings (which 

the Court adopted) was critical to Defendants because of Mr. Colucci and his Board allies’ 

egregious and outright abuse of the Board meeting process to purport to effectuate their hostile 

takeover. This entire controversy started when Mr. Colucci became a board member less than 

three months ago in mid-June, and within three weeks, launched a scheme to disenfranchise two 

duly-elected board members (Lisa King and Roderick Vanderbilt), terminate the long-standing 

CEO of Vinco (Lisa King) and eliminate any involvement by Defendant Farnsworth (the 

individual who raised hundreds of millions of dollars in financing for the company).  One 

unsavory tactic Mr. Colucci and the other two Board members involved in his scheme repeatedly 

employed during the hostile takeover was to schedule board meetings on quick notice, with no 

agenda, and then attempt to cram through critical votes to disassemble the company—e.g., the 

vote to fire 80% of the work force, the vote to fire King as CEO, the vote to fire Farnsworth as 

co-CEO, and numerous other actions to seize control of Vinco Ventures.2   

Given the egregious abuses to the board meeting process employed by Mr. Colucci and 

his Board member allies, Defendants unequivocally sought the requirement that all Board 

meetings be held with unanimous consent.  Prior counsel for Plaintiff was keenly aware this was 

Defendants’ position given that Defendants’ counsel made their position clear on the record.  8/17 

 

2 Some of these illicit actions were taken at purported board meetings conducted when Defendants 
King and Vanderbilt were restrained from attending by the TRO Vinco obtained without notice 
and which has since been dissolved by the Court. 
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Trns at 45:19-46:6.  There is no dispute Court signed and entered Defendant Farnsworth’s 

proposed order, which included the unanimous consent requirement.  Even if paragraph 5 could 

have been drafted differently, it does not negate the intent and purpose of this provision, which 

was made clear at the August 17, 2022 hearing.  While certain persons on Plaintiff’s Board may 

not like the 8/17/22 Order and want to again re-write history3, there is no legitimate dispute this 

Order requires unanimous Board consent to hold a Board meeting.  

The argument that the Court intended to require unanimous consent for meetings noticed 

in 48 hours but did not intend its Order apply to meetings noticed in 48-hour-and-one-second is 

nonsensical and is a blatant attempt to pervert and/or violate the Court order.  The Vinco bylaws 

already require 48 hours’ notice for board meetings.  If the unanimity requirement imposed 

by the Court is limited to meetings called with less than 48 hours’ notice, it is meaningless because 

such meetings are already prohibited without unanimous consent (or waiver).  The entire reason 

for the unanimity provision in the 8/17/22 Order was to prevent the Colucci-engineered chaos 

that the serial board meetings were inflicting. 

To support its improper attempt to inappropriately seek what is effectively reconsideration 

of the Court’s Order, Plaintiff argues the unanimous consent requirement is “unworkable” 

because it purportedly allows any single Director to interfere with the other Directors’ ability to 

satisfy their fiduciary duties, “clashes” with paragraph 2 of the same Order, and will force the 

parties back to Court every time the Board need to make a decision. These unfounded and 

speculative arguments are not persuasive.  

Plaintiff fails to explain how the unanimous consent requirement for meetings has any 

impact on a Director’s ability to “stay reasonably apprised of Company issues.”  Mot. at 8:14-16.  

A board meeting is not the sole vessel by which a director can stay reasonably informed of 

Company issues.  Regardless, while the 8/17/22 Order requires unanimous consent to hold a 

 

3 See Plaintiff’s August 29, 2022 Motion (seeking to undo the Court’s order appointing Ross 
Miller and Lisa King as Co-CEO’s with John Colucci, leaving Mr. Colucci the sole CEO); see 
also Defendants’ Opposition, filed on August 20, 2022. 
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Board meeting, the Order also requires that the Board members must not unreasonably withhold 

their agreement to hold a board meeting and/or waive the 48-hours’ notice requirement.  8/17/22 

Order at ¶ 5.  As Plaintiff also recognizes, the Court’s August 19, 2022 Order further specified 

that “[t]he Board and Plaintiff’s executives shall take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure 

Vinco Venture’s ongoing business operations.”  8/19/22 Order at ¶ 5.  The 8/17/22 Order also 

allows the parties to seek a Court order requiring a Board meeting be held.  8/17/22 Order at ¶ 5.  

Hence, if any Director believes its ability to exercise his or her fiduciary duties is impacted by 

another Director’s unreasonable refusal to provide consent to hold a Board meeting, Plaintiff 

can seek a Court order requiring a Board meeting.  Id.  

Plaintiff likewise fails to demonstrate how the unanimous consent requirement “clashes” 

with paragraph 2, which requires Board approval of any expenditure in excess of $250,000.  A 

Board meeting is not required to approve an expenditure as this can be handled via other means 

such as through written consent.  If any expenditure approval cannot be done by written consent, 

then the Board can hold a Board meeting to discuss the same, for which no Board member can 

unreasonably withhold their consent.  There is simply no inherent conflict between these 

directives.  

Finally, and for the same reasons, the unanimous consent requirement does not “force the 

parties back to Court every time the Board need to make a decision.”  Again, because the 8/17/22 

Order requires the Board member to not unreasonably withhold their consent to hold a Board 

meeting, Plaintiff’s contention here is unfounded and speculative.  In fact, the only reason the 

parties would repeatedly end up before this Court on this issue is if Mr. Colucci and his allies 

continue to try and use Board meetings as weapons to improperly promote their self-serving 

agenda.   

The Court should deny Plaintiff’s Motion.  The unanimous consent requirement for Board 

meetings was clearly discussed and understood to be part of Defendant Farnsworth’s proposed 

Order, which the Court entered as its own.  To the extent the 8/17/22 Order requires 

“clarification”, Plaintiff fails to demonstrate any legitimate reason the Court should reconsider 

the Order to remove the unanimous consent requirement for Board meetings.   
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IV. 

CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, Defendant respectfully requests that the Court deny Plaintiff’s 

Motion. The Court’s August 17, 2022 Order clearly requires unanimous consent from all Board 

member to hold a Board Meeting, and Plaintiff fails to demonstrate any reason the Court’s Order 

requires clarification.  

DATED this 6th day of September, 2022. 

KEMP JONES, LLP 
 
/s/  Madison Zornes-Vela   
Will Kemp, Esq. (#1205) 
Nathanael R. Rulis, Esq. (#11259) 
Madison Zornes-Vela, Esq. (#13626) 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Attorneys for Defendant 
Theodore Farnsworth  

 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that on the    6th       day of September, 2022, I served a true and correct 

copy of the foregoing DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF VINCO 

VENTURES, INC.’S MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION OF THE COURT’S AUGUST 17, 

2022 ORDER PERTAINING TO MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS via the 

Eighth Judicial District Court’s electronic service system on all parties on the Court’s service list.  

 
 
            /s/ Ali Lott                      
      An employee of Kemp Jones 
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From: Mike Distasio mike@chair.com
Subject: Please see Monday Board meeting request attached

Date: August 26, 2022 at 5:22 PM
To: Elliot Goldstein goldsteinelchonon@gmail.com, Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com, Roderick Vanderbilt rodv1@msn.com,

Lisa King Lking@vincoventures.com, Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com, Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com

Mike Distasio

Vinco - Board 
Meetin…22).pdf
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From: Elliot Goldstein elliot@whitedoveequities.com
Subject: Board meeting request for Monday 6pm

Date: August 26, 2022 at 5:38 PM
To: Lisa King Lking@Vincoventures.com, Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com, John Colucci

jcoluccivincoventures@gmail.com, Mike Distasio mike@chair.com

Please see attached board meeting request.

Have a fantastic weekend!

Elliot Goldstein, Partner
White Dove Equities
908.216.1254
Elliot@Whitedoveequities.com

Vinco - Board 
Meetin…22).pdf
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From: Lisa King Lking@Vincoventures.com
Subject: Re: Please see Monday Board meeting request attached

Date: August 27, 2022 at 6:48 AM
To: Mike Distasio mike@chair.com
Cc: Elliot Goldstein goldsteinelchonon@gmail.com, Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com, Roderick Vanderbilt rodv1@msn.com,

Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com
Bcc: Nathanael Rulis n.rulis@kempjones.com, Teddy Parker tparker@pnalaw.net, Madison Zornes-Vela

m.zornes-vela@kempjones.com, Ted Farnsworth Tedfarnsworth@gmail.com, Erik Noble enoble@zash.global

Mike & Elliot,

I am not available for the requested Board meeting on Monday, August 29 and disagree that we need a Board meeting in order to 
accomplish the narrative for the special meeting. We can review a draft via email as soon as it becomes available. This review will 
involve all three co-CEOs as well.

As far as scheduling a Board meeting, the previous Court order said that it required unanimous Board approval (or Court order) to 
set a meeting.  See paragraph 5 in the attached. As a result of not having unanimous approval to conduct a Board meeting, one shall 
not occur on Monday, August 29 and no motions or votes can be taken.

Additionally, I refuse to attend Vinco Ventures, Inc., a public company Board meeting on a private Zoom invite, as shown in Elliot's 
notice, unless required to do so by court order. Vinco Ventures, Inc. private Board meetings should be conducted on a corporate 
Zoom or Google Meets account. 

Kind Regards,
Lisa King
P + (315)-420-8036

On Aug 26, 2022, at 5:21 PM, Mike Distasio <mike@chair.com> wrote:

Mike Distasio
<Vinco - Board Meeting Notice (Meeting Date August 29, 2022).pdf>

2022.08.17 
Order…gs.pdf

Vinco - Board 
Meetin…22).pdf
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From: Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com
Subject: Re: Please see Monday Board meeting request attached

Date: August 27, 2022 at 10:42 AM
To: Lisa King Lking@vincoventures.com
Cc: Mike Distasio mike@chair.com, Elliot Goldstein goldsteinelchonon@gmail.com, Roderick Vanderbilt Rodv1@msn.com,

Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com

Lisa,

The unanimous vote in the court order is exclusively associated to calling a board meeting in less than 48 hours. To my
understanding Elliot and Michael have given us more than enough time.

As far as your opinion on the matter. Here is the job duty of the board:
“The board is responsible for protecting shareholders' interests, establishing policies for
management, oversight of the corporation or organization, and making decisions about
important issues a company or organization faces.”

If you feel this in not an import issue of the company and choose not to show up I’m sure the board will understand. 

Since you did not ask or suggest another date and time. Along with the fact you are telling the board what to do as a Interim CO-
CEO. The board of this company is our boss essentially. If they want to have the meeting they will.

Thank you

On Aug 27, 2022, at 6:48 AM, Lisa King <Lking@vincoventures.com> wrote:

Mike & Elliot,

I am not available for the requested Board meeting on Monday, August 29 and disagree that we need a Board meeting in order to 
accomplish the narrative for the special meeting. We can review a draft via email as soon as it becomes available. This review will 
involve all three co-CEOs as well.

As far as scheduling a Board meeting, the previous Court order said that it required unanimous Board approval (or Court order) to 
set a meeting.  See paragraph 5 in the attached. As a result of not having unanimous approval to conduct a Board meeting, one 
shall not occur on Monday, August 29 and no motions or votes can be taken.

Additionally, I refuse to attend Vinco Ventures, Inc., a public company Board meeting on a private Zoom invite, as shown in Elliot's 
notice, unless required to do so by court order. Vinco Ventures, Inc. private Board meetings should be conducted on a corporate 
Zoom or Google Meets account. 

Kind Regards,
Lisa King
P + (315)-420-8036

On Aug 26, 2022, at 5:21 PM, Mike Distasio <mike@chair.com> wrote:

Mike Distasio
<Vinco - Board Meeting Notice (Meeting Date August 29, 2022).pdf>

2022.08.17 
Order…gs.pdf
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From: Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com
Subject: Re: Please see Monday Board meeting request attached

Date: August 27, 2022 at 11:52 AM
To: Lisa King Lking@vincoventures.com
Cc: Mike Distasio mike@chair.com, Elliot Goldstein goldsteinelchonon@gmail.com, Roderick Vanderbilt Rodv1@msn.com,

Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com

Lisa,

I have had three firms explain.

Everyone of them felt the same way.

The context of this is being used correctly in the email I wrote and you are referencing to.

John Colucci

On Aug 27, 2022, at 11:33 AM, Lisa King <Lking@vincoventures.com> wrote:

John,

Your understanding of the court order is incorrect. Have your attorney explain it to you.

Lisa

On Aug 27, 2022, at 10:42 AM, Giovanni Colucci <john@hwydata.com> wrote:

Lisa,

The unanimous vote in the court order is exclusively associated to calling a board meeting in less than 48 hours. To my
understanding Elliot and Michael have given us more than enough time.

As far as your opinion on the matter. Here is the job duty of the board:
“The board is responsible for protecting shareholders' interests, establishing policies for
management, oversight of the corporation or organization, and making decisions about
important issues a company or organization faces.”

If you feel this in not an import issue of the company and choose not to show up I’m sure the board will understand. 

Since you did not ask or suggest another date and time. Along with the fact you are telling the board what to do as a Interim
CO-CEO. The board of this company is our boss essentially. If they want to have the meeting they will.

Thank you

On Aug 27, 2022, at 6:48 AM, Lisa King <Lking@vincoventures.com> wrote:

Mike & Elliot,

I am not available for the requested Board meeting on Monday, August 29 and disagree that we need a Board meeting in 
order to accomplish the narrative for the special meeting. We can review a draft via email as soon as it becomes available. This 
review will involve all three co-CEOs as well.

As far as scheduling a Board meeting, the previous Court order said that it required unanimous Board approval (or Court 
order) to set a meeting.  See paragraph 5 in the attached. As a result of not having unanimous approval to conduct a Board 
meeting, one shall not occur on Monday, August 29 and no motions or votes can be taken.
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Additionally, I refuse to attend Vinco Ventures, Inc., a public company Board meeting on a private Zoom invite, as shown in 
Elliot's notice, unless required to do so by court order. Vinco Ventures, Inc. private Board meetings should be conducted on a 
corporate Zoom or Google Meets account. 

Kind Regards,
Lisa King
P + (315)-420-8036

On Aug 26, 2022, at 5:21 PM, Mike Distasio <mike@chair.com> wrote:

Mike Distasio
<Vinco - Board Meeting Notice (Meeting Date August 29, 2022).pdf>

2022.08.17 
Order…gs.pdf

Vinco - Board 
Meetin…22).pdf
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NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VINCO 
VENTURES, INC. 

 
Dated August 26, 2022 prior to 6:00 PM ET 
Sent to each Board member via email 
 
To the Directors of Vinco Ventures, Inc. 
 
In accordance with the Bylaws of Vinco Ventures, Inc. (the “Company”), Michael DiStasio and Elliot 
Goldstein, two independent directors, are noticing a special meeting of the board of directors of the 
Company to be held on Monday, August 29, 2022, at 6:00 PM ET, via the zoom link below.  Attendance 
at the board meeting shall include current directors, the Company’s co-CEOs, John Colucci, Lisa King and 
Ross Miller, and the Company’s CFO, Phil Jones. 
 
The agenda of matters to be covered at this special meeting is below.  If a director has any additional matters 
to be included on the agenda, such director suggest such item for inclusion on the agenda via email to the 
entire Board by 12 p.m. August 29, 2022. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is as follows: 
 

1. Narrative for the Special Meeting of the Stockholders scheduled for Tuesday, August 30, 2022. 
 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

REDACTED
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RTRAN 

 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
 
VINCO VENTURES, INC., 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
THEODORE FARNSWORTH, et 
al, 
 
                          Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
 

 
 
  CASE#:  A-22-856404-B 
 
  DEPT.  XVI 
 
 
 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE TIMOTHY WILLIAMS, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2022 

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING 

ALL PENDING MOTIONS 

 
APPEARANCES:   
 
  For the Plaintiff:    JOEL TASKA, ESQ. 
       ANDREW CLARK, ESQ. 
       DAVID E. CHAVEZ, ESQ. 
       (via BlueJeans) 
 

For the Defendants:    WILLIAM S. KEMP, ESQ. 
       THEODORE PARKER, III, ESQ 
       NATHANIEL R. RULIS, ESQ. 
       (via BlueJeans) 
       MADISON ZORNES-VELA, 
       ESQ. (via BlueJeans) 
 

Case Number: A-22-856404-B

Electronically Filed
9/13/2022 1:35 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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APPEARANCES (continued):   
 

Also Appearing:    AMY L. SUGDEN, ESQ. 
       (for Ross Miller) 
       ROSS MILLER 
       ERIK NOBLE (via BlueJeans) 
       GABE HUNTERTON 
       THEODORE FARNSWORTH 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECORDED BY:  MARIA GARIBAY, COURT RECORDER 
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Friday, September 9, 2022 

 

[Case called at 1:37 p.m.] 

THE MARSHAL:  -- is in session.  The Honorable Timothy C. 

Williams presiding.  Please be seated and come to order.   

THE COURT:  All right, I just want to say good afternoon, 

everyone.  Let's go ahead and set forth our appearances for the record?   

MR. KEMP:  Your Honor, Will Kemp on behalf of Defendant 

Farnsworth.  

MR. PARKER:  Good afternoon, Your Honor, Theodore 

Parker on behalf of Lisa King and Roderick Vanderbilt.  

MR. TASKA:  Good afternoon, Your Honor, Joel Taska and 

Andrew Clark on behalf of the Plaintiff.   

MS. SUGDEN:  Good afternoon, Your Honor, Amy Sugden on 

behalf of Ross Miller, also for Gabe Hunterton as well.   

THE COURT:  All right.  So once again, good afternoon.  Tell 

me, where are we at?   

MR. KEMP:  Your Honor, with regards to the financial 

information we finished the day with, they wanted the protective order 

entered.  We negotiated and finished the protective order.  Special 

Master Hale [phonetic] entered it yesterday promptly I may add.  And --  

THE COURT:  He's extremely --  

MR. KEMP:  He's very fast.   

THE COURT:  Yes.   

MR. KEMP:  And at the end of the day, they gave us some 
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financial information that indicates some payments or reserves or 

whatever.  

And, frankly, it's raised a lot of questions.  There appears to 

have been a $450,000 payment made after the Court issued the 

prohibition on payments over 250,000.  

So I think there's a -- there's a couple motions that are either 

heading down to the Court or sitting on their desk asking for OSTs on 

those.   

And then, my -- a bitter concern at least from me is this AI 

Pros situation.  And to give the Court a little background again, AI Pros 

is Mr. Yang's company.   

And AI Pros executed NDAs with two companies, AdRizer and 

Mind Task [sic] that we're affiliated with, but we haven't acquired.  And 

took -- it was given a lot of intellectual property by them to review.   

After that, AI Pros approached the company and wanted to 

enter into some kind of agreement.  Ms. King, when she was co-CEO, 

didn't approve of that.   

Mr. Farnsworth didn't even know about it.  And then, there 

was a payment made to AI Pros of $975,000 on July 21st.  And again, I 

would point out that Ms. King asked Mr. Noble to meet with Mr. --  

THE COURT:  And what was the figure again?  How much?   

MR. KEMP:  4 -- the 975,000 was the first payment, Your 

Honor.  So Ms. King asked Mr. Noble to verify that, you know, what 

they're paying for is real, okay?   

And Mr. Noble met with Mr. Yang or corresponded with him, 
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I'm not sure which, and was not able to bless the product that was being 

purchased.  

After that, there was another $500,000 paid to this AI Pros on 

August 15th.  So now we're up to a million and a quarter.   

So what my concern now is that I see in the -- being released 

that they gave us to us yesterday that there was a transfer for 

$4,000,000 from Vinco to an entity known as Edison National, LLC, 

which is a subsidiary of Vinco.  

And the ledger entry says, "holding for AI Pros operating 

funds".  

THE COURT:  Who's AI Pro again?   

MR. KEMP:  Okay, AI Pros again is a company that does 

business out of I believe Northern California.  I think they're incorporated 

in Delaware.   

And they're run by a man named George Yang.  And George 

Yang, I don't know if Your Honor recalls, but George Yang was sitting in 

the audience for two days.  He came down to give testimony in support 

of Mr. Colucci's position because AI Pros is subject to some of the 

counterclaims that are made here.   

And in fact, Mr. Yang was served with a deposition notice.  

And that was the deposition that was supposed to go forward on 

Monday that we had to get Special Master Hale appointed for.   

And Special Master Hale has now continued that deposition to 

September 22nd, I believe.  But in any event, that's who AI Pros is.   

THE COURT:  So I want to make sure.  So we had 975,000, 
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another 500,000?   

MR. KEMP:  Right.   

THE COURT:  And now 4,000,000?   

MR. KEMP:  And I don't know if the 4,000,000 has been paid 

or is being held to be paid.  We're trying to get clarification on that.  I 

mean, but this is unbelievable because we have --  

THE COURT:  I want to make sure I understand the dates.  So 

the 975- was when?   

MR. KEMP:  July 21st.   

THE COURT:  Okay, 7/21.  

MR. KEMP:  The 5 -- another 500,000 on August 15th.   

And then, on August 15th, that same day, another $4,000,000 

transferred from the Vinco account in the bank to an account of -- it's 

listed on the thing as EN, LLC, which we think refers to Edison National, 

LLC and -- 

THE COURT:  And that was on 8/15?   

MR. KEMP:  8/15.  And so, my concern is it says, "holding for 

AI Pros operating funds".   

We also know that Mr. Colucci signed a licensing agreement 

with AI Pros on July 22nd, 2002 or 2022 that was not approved by the 

Board, was not approved by Ms. King, was not approved by Mr. 

Farnsworth, wherein AI Pros is to get $1,950,000.   

And we have heard, we have not seen, but we have --  

THE COURT:  And that's why in this case what's currently 

pending before me; is that correct?   
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MR. KEMP:  No, well, I don't know the exact filing date.   

THE COURT:  7/22?  

MR. KEMP:  But this license agreement's July 22nd.  We have 

heard rumor that there's another licensing agreement, which we assume 

is in the same amount, 1,950,000.   

And again, you know, we're talking spending millions of dollars 

without even telling the co-CEOs what's going on?  It's unbelievable.  

But the 1,950,000 and the other 1,950,000, that's 2,000,000 

plus 2,000,000, that conveniently equals the $4,000,000 that was moved 

on August 15th to this Edison account.  

So we're trying to get clarification on this.  So I'm concerned 

about the 450-, but that's maybe the tail wagging the dog.   

The AI Pros thing, I think, is more significant.  And the other 

point I'd make on AI Pros is I can't remember if it's the president of Mine 

Task --  

MR. PARKER:  Tank.  

MR. KEMP:  Mind Tank or AdRizer, but one of the other 

accuses AI Pros of stealing their intellectual property.  And again, they 

signed NDAs with this entity and that's how they got it.   

And you know, there's some facts about stuff being on 

websites and being removed after complaints were made.  And there's a 

pending whistleblower complaint now, maybe two.  I know there's at 

least one.   

But you know, this is serious, Your Honor.  They came in here 

last week and said, oh, geez, we're down to our last 17 000,000, which 
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wasn't really true, because they didn't count the other 10,000,000.   

I don't know how this 4,000,000 or 6.5 -- 6.25 to AI Pros is 

being counted, but when you're talking about $17,000,000, and here's 

6.25 million going out the door without appropriate approvals or vetting, I 

mean, I think it's a serious thing.   

And I just want to bring it to the Court's attention because like I 

already said, we have an OST pending now on the $450,000 payment.  

And we're working on probably another motion with regard to this AI 

Pros thing.   

Because assuming for the sake of argument that the money 

hopefully is still in this EN, LLC, which again, I think means Edison 

Nation, LLC account at the bank, and it hasn't been transmitted to AI 

Pros, I mean, we got to make sure it stays there.   

And you know, like I've already said twice, how this could all 

be happening without the knowledge and consent of the co-CEOs when 

they're having calls arguing about $100 invoices is just beyond belief, 

but that's the status of the financials, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  All right.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, if I could.  I sent over to the Court 

maybe an hour, hour and a half ago, a motion.  I don't know if the Court 

had a chance to take a look at it.   

I brought a hard copy just so the Court could have something 

in front of it.  If I could approach, Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  Make sure, before you approach.   

MR. PARKER:  I've done -- 
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THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. PARKER:  -- oh, of course, Your Honor.  I gave copies to 

everyone before we started.  And it lays out, Your Honor, in short 

fashion, these unexplainable expenditures.   

And I wanted to clear up a few things that Mr. Kemp raised 

with the Court.  Your Honor, August 15th, was the day before -- 

[The Judge confers with the Clerk] 

THE COURT:  Go ahead, Mr. Parker.  

MR. PARKER:  Thank you, Your Honor.  So, August 15th, 

Your Honor, was the day before we began the three-day hearing on 

Plaintiff's motion for TRO preliminary injunction.   

And I want to frame the discussion because August 15th, the 

day they earmarked this $4,000,000 amount for AI Pros was the very 

day before we appeared in Court before you on the 16th.   

Ms. Adele Hogan is there.  Mr. Colucci is there.  Mr. Yang is 

there all before your Court -- all before Your Honor.  And these 

expenses were earmarked the day before we show up.   

And while we're there on the 16th, Mr. Connot made several 

remarks indicating that there's no Board meetings occurring, there's 

nothing that's happening that should give rise to the Court having to 

address an acute issue.   

And I put that out there, Your Honor, because it's in the 

transcripts on the 16th and the 17th how interested this Court was in 

finding and establishing a status quo, then maintaining it.   

And so, it's apparent to me now that we've finally received 
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some semblance of some financials now that they attempted to get all of 

these expenses in a place where we could not, we being the other Board 

members, could not affect change or prevent those monies from looted 

from our accounts.  

So when you consider roughly $6,000,000 being spent 

between the 15th and last week, knowing full well this Court intended 

and actually created an order where nothing beyond $250,000 was to be 

-- supposed to be spent without unanimous agreement, this is not just an 

affront to the comments made before the Court, but it's a direct violation 

of the Court's order.   

And so, Your Honor, we've asked in this motion, and hopefully 

the Court will sign an OST, that Mr. Colucci, Mr. Jones, Mr. Goldstein, 

Mr. Distasio, and Mr. Garrows all be held in contempt.   

We've also asked that Lucosky Brookman also be held in 

contempt because not only was Ms. Hogan here asking for permission 

to associate and -- as counsel under Supreme Court Rule 42, but she 

heard the comments, and in addition to knowing the order of the Court, 

accepted a $450,000 payment.   

Now we're still waiting to get backup.  And I want to be, you 

know, forthright with the Court.  I spoke to Mr. Taska yesterday.  And on 

Monday, we're going to hopefully exchange disclosures.  

So we should see the backup for these expenditures.  And as 

Mr. Kemp said, if the expenditures have not truly been made, but simply 

reflected on their ledger, then that's also some explaining that needs to 

be done.  
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What I do know is that Ms. Lisa King, a Board member, and 

co-CEO, Mr. Vanderbilt, the Chair of the Board, they're not aware of any 

of these expenditures.  And it's my understanding that Mr. Farnsworth 

was not aware of it.   

Additionally, Your Honor, Mr. Kemp was actually giving AI 

Pros more deference than they're entitled to.  They were paid more than 

975-.  I have in front of me a copy of the AI Pros invoice, dated March 

28, 2022, where they received a downpayment of $650,000.   

And this was part of a 1.-- a $2.6 million dollar invoice to 

Magnify-U, which of course is one of the companies under the Vinco 

umbrella.  

And I also have a separate invoice related to AdRizer for a 

payment of $550,000 for a total invoice of $2.2 million.  

And then, there's a third invoice from AI Pros, where a 

downpayment of 975,000, that's the payment that Mr. Kemp was 

speaking of, that was made --  

THE COURT:  I don't mind saying this.  I'm trying to figure out 

how could all this be occurring when we're haggling over making 

payroll?   

MR. PARKER:  Well, this is -- listen, we are amazed.  Now 

these payments came down -- 

THE COURT:  I mean, seriously, we're here haggling over 

trying to make payroll and whether that would be appropriate or not.   

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely, Your Honor.  Now these payments 

were made and I said up front, they were made in March, but what we've 
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known now is that in furtherance of these agreements, they earmarked 

$4,000,000 on the 15th.   

I also want to point out, Your Honor, Ms. Lisa King, at the time 

CEO, instructed Erik Noble and Erik Noble informed Vinco Ventures that 

to hold all payments to AI Pros.  This is an email dated July 19th, 2022 

sent at 3:08 p.m.  

At this point, there was suspicions regarding the relationship 

between Colucci and AI Pros.  And for some reason, Mr. Colucci got 

involved and attempted to, I don't want to say coerce, but facilitate those 

payments.  

And so, the red lights went off.  All of the caution signs were in 

front of us.  And Lisa King said hold these payments.   

Despite her suggestions and her concerns for the health of 

this company, especially the theft of AI from Magnify-U, AdRizer, Mind 

Tank, and Vinco Ventures as a corporation, they found it wise to spend 

or earmark $4,000,000 for this company.   

It defies logic.  To me, it defies the comments made to this 

Court and certainly is a violation of the spirit of the Court's order.  

In addition, in my opinion, holding that money there is a 

violation of the Court's August 17th, 2022 order.   

Now, Your Honor, we bring this up because we asked from 

Day 1, please provide us with a general ledger, a summary of the 

expenses, because all CEOs deserve that information, not just Mr. 

Colucci. 

All the Board members deserve that information, not just Mr. 
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Colucci or Mr. Goldstein or Mr. Distasio.  And certainly, not just counting 

for --  

THE COURT:  And they've been in their positions for what, 90 

days?   

MR. PARKER:  Yes.  They've had this -- they've had -- strike 

that, Your Honor.  They've had this information since they tried to kick 

the Defendants off the Board as CEOs.   

THE COURT:  And I understand what you're saying, but I 

mean, they've been in a position for Vinco.  

MR. PARKER:  That's right.   

THE COURT:  For example, Mr. Colucci and all of this -- all 

these money transactions started occurring over the last 90 days.   

MR. PARKER:  Handled the last month.  That's right.   

THE COURT:  I'm going to tell everyone.  I'm very concerned.  

This case was filed on August 3rd, 2022.  And I would anticipate that 

once a case is filed, and I realize there's a TRO, but you would think that 

the decisionmakers would be very cautious once the case is filed in 

district court.   

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  You understand what I'm saying because --  

MR. PARKER:  I certainly --  

THE COURT:  Because at that point, and I realize the relief 

might be slightly different as being requested, but you're under the 

jurisdiction of a trial court at that time, right? 

MR. PARKER:  That's right.   
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THE COURT:  And that's a game changer.   

MR. PARKER:  It is.  And Your Honor, I -- I'm going to show 

some deference to Mr. Taska because he was not here on the 16th, the 

17th, or the 18th.  So he may not have read the transcripts and 

appreciate the severity of the situation given Mr. Connot's comments.  

But Mr. Colucci certainly was here.  Ms. Adele Hogan was 

here.  And Mr. Yang was here.   

This flies in the face of everything this Court tried to do to 

create a situation where you preserved the health of this company.  

So, Your Honor, I -- Mr. Kemp and I wanted to put this in front 

of the Court because to me, it plays into the motion that Mr. Taska will 

argue in a few moments regarding having Board meetings.   

And this Court said if there was an issue that could not be 

unanimously agreed upon, I will make myself available.  That's what this 

Court said.  In fact, you said we could call you as a group if it was 

something so important.   

I can't understand how they could make these decisions to 

pay these monies and not consider that important enough to first advise 

all the CEOs, including Mr. Miller, and advise the Board members.  

And then, if they could not make a decision bring it before the 

Court.  You don't spend almost $6,000,000 of money when you're saying 

you can barely make payroll.  

And so, I just wanted the Court to have an understanding of 

where we are, Your Honor, why this motion was filed, why these people 

are being -- why the Court's being asked to find these people in 
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contempt because we think what they've done is a complete violation of 

the -- of your order and some type of action should be taken.   

THE COURT:  All right, we'll hear from the -- I guess we have 

no opposition right now.  Any comments, sir, you want to make? 

MR. TASKA:  Well, Your Honor, first of all, I'm reminded of the 

very first time I stood up in this case and Mr. Parker admonished me for 

standing up and just talking about whatever I wanted.  It didn't really 

relate to a motion that was before the Court on that day.  

THE COURT:  But, sir, I'll tell you this.  I won't admonish you 

and I'll listen.   

MR. TASKA:  What's that?   

THE COURT:  I will listen and I'm not admonishing you.   

MR. TASKA:  I understand that, but I didn't even know this 

was the day where we just got up and talked about anything we wanted, 

because that's what they just did.   

Now they just filed a motion.  Literally, I saw it 10 minutes 

before I left the office to be able to come down here.  They're cherry 

picking facts.  We have not yet had an opportunity to respond to their 

allegations.   

And, obviously, they've gotten to Your Honor.  Your Honor is 

concerned, you said, about all this.  Well --  

THE COURT:  Any -- I don't mind saying this.  I am concerned 

and from a historical perspective I don't mind saying this, a few weeks 

back there was a big issue and discussion as to whether or not this 

company should continue to make payroll.  And there were issues raised 
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regarding the financial health of the company and those type of things.  

And notwithstanding that and after vigorous discussion, I went 

ahead and issued whatever order I issued regarding making the 

$700,000.   

And then, I come into today and I thought we were going to 

have a motion for consideration.  I thought -- and there were issues 

regarding getting the financials.  That's why I appointed to Mr. Hale.  He 

does a wonderful job, by the way. 

And everyone that can agree that he's probably the most 

efficient special master anyone has ever seen.  And he is.  He just is, but 

my point is this.  I didn't think we would be discussing potentially an 

issue regarding 4,000,000, 500,000, 975,000.  That's a lot of money.   

MR. TASKA:  Should I just testify then, Your Honor, like they 

just did?   

THE COURT:  No, no, no, but -- 

MR. TASKA:  I mean, it's not true.  It's not true.  And we 

haven't had an opportunity to respond yet.   

THE COURT:  No, here's my point.   

MR. TASKA:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  And I'm not going to rush to judgment, but I'm 

going to sign the order shortening time.   

MR. TASKA:  That's fine, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Yeah, but I mean -- and we'll find out whether 

Mr. Parker's position has merit, based upon the facts or not.   

MR. TASKA:  Yes, we will.   
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THE COURT:  Yeah, we'll find that out, but when should we 

set this?  When's a good time?  What's open?   

MR. PARKER:  Today, Tuesday, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Well, this [indiscernible] remember this is what 

everyone has to understand.  This is business court, right?  Yeah, it is.  

It's business court.  It's a different matter.   

Sometimes you have to make room, right?  That's kind of how 

it is.  It's not a question of what's convenient.   

[The Judge confers with the Clerk] 

THE COURT:  How's Wednesday afternoon?   

MR. PARKER:  I'm going to be in -- out of the jurisdiction, 

Your Honor, Wednesday.   

THE COURT:  Tuesday afternoon?   

MR. PARKER:  I can do Tuesday afternoon.   

THE COURT:  Tuesday afternoon, how's that?   

MR. TASKA:  I believe that works for us, Your Honor.  Yeah, 

Tuesday afternoon works.   

MR. PARKER:  Thank you, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Tuesday afternoon at 1:30.  I'll sign this.  And 

I'll give it to you.   

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you, Judge. 

THE COURT:  All right.  And we'll deal with that.   

And what we'll do as far as the opposition, if you can get that 

to me so we're coming -- when are we again Tuesday afternoon?   

THE CLERK:  Tuesday, the 13th.   
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THE COURT:  Say Monday by close of business is fine.   

MR. TASKA:  Understood.   

THE COURT:  All right, and we'll move on.  I guess next up is 

the motion for clarification; is that correct?   

MR. TASKA:  There are a few easier matters, Your Honor, if 

you want to take those first.   

THE COURT:  I'd rather take the easier matters.   

MR. TASKA:  I believe that we were to report on selections for 

potential special counsel.  Each side was supposed to do that.  So I'm 

happy to give you our names and --  

MR. KEMP:  Judge, I didn't think we were supposed to come 

to Court.  I thought we were supposed to meet and confer among 

ourselves on those names.  

MR. TASKA:  Okay, I may have understood.  I thought we 

were supposed to have it.  I thought that was on the agenda for today.   

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, we have names.  I don't have them with 

me now, but I can meet and confer with counsel after we're done here.   

THE COURT:  Was that something we have to address right 

now?   

MR. TASKA:  We don't have to address it right now.  I just 

thought and specifically, in fact, I know it was specifically stated as on 

the agenda for today's court hearing.   

MR. KEMP:  Judge, maybe we can meet and confer.  And if 

we can't resolve it, we'll come back Tuesday and finish it.   

MR. TASKA:  Sure.   
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THE COURT:  Okay, yeah, it was on a status check expiration 

of current order, names for special counsel, whether it was 10/5/2022 

motion.  An order to show cause is moot.  Yeah, you're right.   

But if you want to come back and deal with that, that's okay.  

Is that fine?  I don't mind telling you this.  I'd rather have consensus and 

an agreement, but if you can't, I'll decide the issue.   

MR. TASKA:  So that's fine with us, Your Honor.  We'll meet 

and confer with Defendant's counsel.   

THE COURT:  And we can -- how about deciding that 

Tuesday at 1:30? 

MR. TASKA:  Sure.   

THE COURT:  We'll decide that first up.   

All right.  So I guess going back to the status check, we have 

names -- I guess that would be names for special counsel.  Is that 

correct?   

MR. TASKA:  Correct.   

THE COURT:  What about expiration of current order?   

MR. TASKA:  Well, I -- that's slightly more complicated, but 

the other one I think we can quickly dispose of, Your Honor, is whether 

the motion for sanctions against Defendants is moot.  

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. TASKA:  And it is certainly not moot.  We intend to 

proceed with that.   

THE COURT:  All right.  I understand.   

MR. TASKA:  And then we get to the --  
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THE COURT:  Because that's currently -- let me look here.  I 

just want to make sure.  That's currently set for October 5th, 2022?   

MR. TASKA:  I think that's right, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Okay, so that'll stay on calendar.  I'll knock that 

off the list.  Okay, next issue?   

MR. TASKA:  So the next issue I believe is the expiration of 

the 8/17 order and whether payroll continues to be made, whether 

employees of those companies can't be terminated.  And you know, our 

position, Your Honor, is that the order should not remain in effect.  

And we have a declaration that we're filing now from the 

company's CFO, which I can provide a hard copy of to Your Honor, but 

he explains that there's approximately 16,000,000 left in useable cash in 

the company right now.   

And just for example, if the reduction in force that the Board 

approved, but then Ms. King refused to implement, if that were imposed, 

that could save close to a half a million dollars a month.  

And so, you know, with all due respect to the employees and I 

understand they need to get paid, but this is about the company and the 

company shareholders.  

So we think that the order for continuing to have to make 

payroll and restraining the company from being able to terminate 

employees of these companies should be lifted.  

And, again, whoever then is running the company can make 

the decisions about what should happen here.  

It's not appropriate for this Court to be making that decision, 
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you know, when there are other people running the company day-to-day.  

That's our position on that, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  I was hoping that the Board would be making 

that decision, right? 

MR. KEMP:  The problem, Your Honor, is --  

MR. TASKA:  What a nice segue, Your Honor, to our motion, 

but sorry to interrupt, Mr. Kemp. 

MR. KEMP:  The problem here is Mr. Colucci and Mr. Jones 

are pretty much doing anything they want.  You know, this discussion of 

these other payments, they weren't even telling Mr. Miller and Ms. King 

who are the co-CEOs until yesterday after we asked that it be ordered to 

be produced what they've been paying since August 16th.  

Only yesterday did we get a list of what they've been paying 

since August 16th, which led to problems.  

But you know, to suggest that there's, you know, been a 

submission to the CEOs on this issue is flat out wrong.  They haven't 

even brought this up at a meeting that what reduction of force would be 

agreed to or not agreed to.  

And so, what -- when he says a reduction in force --  

THE COURT:  Mr. Kemp, I don't want to cut you off, but I 

mean, the first issue I would want to know the answer to would be the 

necessity for the reduction of workforce, right?  That's the first reason, 

why? 

But just as important, I would -- I was hoping that this would 

be decided by the Board, the three-member Board.  That's why I put Mr. 
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Miller in position.   

MR. PARKER:  You mean the three CEOS.  

MR. KEMP:  CEOS. 

THE COURT:  CEOs, I'm sorry.   

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. KEMP:  -- why aren't the CEOs --  

THE COURT:  I'm sorry, CEOs.   

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, why isn't a proposal if Mr. Colucci wants to 

fire everybody take -- make a proposal and Mr. Jones, make a proposal 

to the other two CEOs, see if you can get a consensus, see if you can at 

least get one of them to agree to it.  

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. KEMP:  I mean, I'm not saying there's not one 

unnecessary employee in the whole company that they couldn't 

eliminate, but that's an issue for the co-CEOs.   

And to suggest now that, oh, Judge, we want this order to 

expire so we can go back to something that Mr. Colucci's Board 

approved while we were restrained from participating and say, oh, this is 

a pre-approved reduction of force, this is already approved.  You know, 

that's what they want to do, Your Honor.  And that would just be totally 

wrong.   

MR. TASKA:  So Your Honor, that misstates our position on 

this.  Our position, I actually think for once I agree with Mr. Kemp that 

this issue should go back to the three CEOs for decision and should not 
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be something that's adjudicated by the Court by this continuing order 

when the Court is not privy to everything that's going on with the 

company.  

It's something that the three CEOs should collectively decide.  

So that's our position.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, this is -- I like the argument Mr. 

Taska just advanced, but it just makes no sense.   

And I like it because it sounds good in a vacuum in a silo, but 

how do you make decisions on HR without an HR evaluation, a comp 

study, financials?   

How does a group of CEOs make those types of decisions in 

terms of something so important as a RIF, not knowing the number of 

employees to be reduced, the reasons, how the company will function 

without that number of employees? 

None of those things can be done without that type of 

information being provided to all CEOs.  Mr. Miller's not gotten it.   

THE COURT:  Well, I can say this, Mr. Parker, I can't disagree 

with you in principle, but I would think this type of information would be a 

condition precedent to making that type of executive decision.   

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely.  And for weeks, we've been asking 

for it.  And I -- Mr. Miller's here and his counsel is here.  They have not 

received it to date.   

MR. TASKA:  So --  

MR. PARKER:  I'm sorry, I didn't interrupt you, Mr. Taska. 

MR. TASKA:  Okay.   
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MR. PARKER:  When I'm done, you can have at it.   

MR. TASKA:  All right.   

MR. PARKER:  Knock yourself out.  

THE COURT:  Gentlemen, one thing I am is patient.  So I'm 

going to -- Mr. Taska, if you'll -- there's something you want to point out 

after you're done.  

MR. TASKA:  Well, I -- 

THE COURT:  Wait, wait, wait.   

MR. TASKA:  Okay, sure.   

THE COURT:  He has the floor right now.  You can stand up 

and I will listen.  I just want -- because I mean, from a historical 

perspective, I can say this.  I don't think whether you argue more or not 

doesn't determining the ultimate outcome of my decision made here.  

MR. PARKER:  Exactly.  

THE COURT:  I think everyone has been here knows that, you 

know.  That's not what -- because I want to hear it.  But in a general 

sense, it appears to me and this is a comment and understand I'm not a 

CEO, but I do understand how businesses work.   

And I don't understand -- I don't -- I'm not necessarily 

intimately familiar with the types of data a CEO would use and rely upon 

to make that type of decision, but I know there has to be information 

there -- 

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  -- to make that decision.  I do know that.   

MR. PARKER:  And -- 
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THE COURT:  And to meet with the head of personnel, the 

head of human resources or whatever the new name might be for that 

from a business perspective, but I would think.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, I had the privilege and the 

heartache of having to go through furloughs for some of my quasi-

governmental agencies that I represent in 2008 here in Las Vegas.  

And as the Court probably remembers, there were times 

where certain agencies had to do furloughs as opposed to RIFs.  

But the considerations for furloughs versus RIFs were, one, 

latent with a lot of HR information, options, the buyouts, what does it 

cost depending on contracts to actually RIF someone because there 

may be severance obligations.  

All of these are things and the forms of information that a CEO 

or a CEOs would be entitled to, to make these types of drastic decisions.  

We've never received that information to date.  As of 

September 9th, 2022, a month and a day after the Court issued the first 

TRO, we still have not received any of this information.  And so, for Mr. 

Taska to sit here saying that these CEOs can make that decision without 

that information is ridiculous.   

Now if he wants to allude to a time where a smaller 

consideration was at hand regarding some employees being reduced, 

that was not the 80 percent that Mr. Connot and Mr. Colucci were 

speaking of on August 16th.  

And yet, we still have none of this information.  Mr. Ross 

doesn't, Mr. Miller doesn't have it, Ms. King doesn't have it.  Mr. 
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Vanderbilt doesn't have it.   

And so, unless they're holding that information to themselves, 

keeping it close to the vest, I don't know how anyone, much less these 

three CEOs can make that determination.   

So I would ask, especially since we're waiting until Monday to 

get disclosures exchanged, that there could never be a decision by any 

CEO or the Court without this information.   

And so, we need that information before the CEOs can 

schedule a meeting on the topics, have it fully vetted, and then, make 

determinations, Your Honor.   

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, Judge, we don't even know how much 

money the company has.  Last week, they said 17,000,000.  Today, they 

said 16,000,000.  We've already alluded to the fact that they got 

10,000,000 back from the Hudson transaction that Mr. Farnsworth 

helped negotiate.   

So we would -- we think they have at least 27 or 26, whatever.  

I don't know where this 4,000,000, 5,000,000, 6,000,000 to AI Pros fits 

into this or not, whether he's counting that as money he's -- part of the 

16,000,000 or that's on top of the 16,000,000.  

But this is pretty basic -- these are pretty basic facts that the 

co-CEOs should know.  Because let's say that they're not counting the 

4,000,000 in the AI Pros and let's say that hopefully, it's still in the 

company account somewhere.   

You know, when the payroll's 75,000 every other week, you 

know, 4,000,000 goes a long way, Your Honor.   
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But I think the primary point is they haven't given the co-CEOs 

Ms. King, Mr. Miller even basic information as to how much money they 

got.   

The only thing we hear is 17,000,000 to 16,000,000 with no 

explanation whatsoever.  You know, you would think that, you know, that 

there'd be some presentation of what money's in the bank, what 

investments they have, you know, what obligations.  You would think 

that the CFO would present that.   

But what's really going on here is Mr. Colucci's just keeping to 

do what he wants to do.  And for whatever reason, Mr. Jones is just 

going along with him, Your Honor.  

And that's why I don't think counsel suggests that you can just 

dump this on the CEOs and get an intelligent decision is well taken.   

MR. TASKA:  So, Your Honor, a few responses to that.  I said 

the CEO should decide this issue.  And then they started talking about 

how the CEOs need information to decide the issues.  I don't dispute 

that, but the CEOs should make the decision, not this Court.   

In terms of information, this is the first I'm hearing about a lack 

of information, other than there was a request made for a spreadsheet 

that we provided yesterday.   

And we provided it pursuant to a protective order that was just 

signed yesterday.  Promptly after the protective order was signed, we 

provided it.  

Now if there is information -- so that's what's happening in the 

Court.  They never moved to compel any information from us.  They've 
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never done anything except for that one spreadsheet.   

As I told Mr. Parker last night, if you think there's something 

there that you're not seeing, pick up the phone and call me up.  Instead, 

he stands up here and rants to the Court like as if we're withholding 

information in violation of some court order.   

I don't know what information he's talking about.  And if there's 

information that Mr. Miller and Ms. King are not getting that they desire, 

they -- that's the first I'm hearing about.   

Mr. Miller's here.  Maybe we should ask him what information 

Mr. Colucci is supposedly withholding from him because nobody's ever 

said to that me.  That's never been brought to my attention by counsel or 

by anyone else.   

So, if that's an issue, I would say have at it, file a motion and 

we'll take it up there, but they're just testifying.  They're testifying about 

why the CEOs can't function, because supposedly, there's not 

information going to them.   

What testimony is there on that?  What information?  They're 

just -- it's lawyers just standing there talking, Your Honor.  

And as for the 4,000,000 that they keep talking about, now I'm 

going to testify because that seems like the thing to do, you know, with 

them is the 4,000,000.  It was never paid to AI Pros.  It was never paid to 

AI Pros.  The 4,000,000 was never paid to AI Pros.   

So all of this nonsense about this big concern about the 

$4,000,000 as Your Honor will hear on Monday and find out, it's just 

nonsense and it's meant to poison the well before Your Honor for the 
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actual motions and issues that are on the agenda for today.  

THE COURT:  All I can say in that regard, sir, is the truth will 

set us all free.  And what I mean by that is if it's not true, then it's not 

true.  It will have no impact on me.   

If the 4,000,000 is missing or something like that, I shouldn't 

say missing.  It's gone to a certain place it shouldn't be, then that would 

impact my decision.  

Because at the end of the day, it's all going to be based on 

facts and not argument of counsel.  They'll be in a bank account or 

they'll be some testimony or they'll be something that I can make a 

decision based upon, right?  I understand and --  

MR. TASKA:  Well, Your Honor, I would respectfully request 

that you admonish counsel to stop testifying.   

THE COURT:  Yeah.   

MR. TASKA:  We're here on a legal motion.  And 

[indiscernible] the status matters, they keep standing up and talk about.  

First of all, all the expenditures that they cherry pick facts, that it's -- you 

hear one side, it's a distorted story, okay?   

THE COURT:  Yeah.   

MR. TASKA:  You're going to hear the real story once we 

present evidence.   

THE COURT:  Yeah, but I just have one comment on that.  

And one thing I don't do, I don't handcuff lawyers.   

MR. TASKA:  Sure.   

THE COURT:  I don't.   
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MR. TASKA:  As long as Your Honor can understand, and I'm 

sure you do, the difference between argument from lawyers, which is 

what they're doing and actual facts and findings of fact, which is based 

on evidence.   

THE COURT:  At the end of the day, I don't think I've ever 

made decisions based upon argument.  I don't think so.  It's always been 

facts.   

MR. TASKA:  That's good to hear, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  I mean, you know, I mean, I will say this, we've 

handled some complex cases in this department, you know.   

Hopefully, all the decisions that have been made have been 

fact-based, you know.  But you're going to get -- that's why I'm going to 

give you a chance to rebut whatever argument they make, sir, based 

upon factual basis. 

And you'll bring it to my attention.  You can say, Judge, you 

know, they're out to lunch on this one and this is why.  That's fine.   

MR. TASKA:  We will, Your Honor.  I - and again, I don't want 

to get off track, but because they raised it, I would like to know what 

information is being withheld from Mr. Miller and Ms. King.   

THE COURT:  Raise it. 

MR. TASKA:  And I will address it if that's what's happening.   

THE COURT:  Yeah, well, this is kind of how I look at that.  

And I don't want to speak for anyone.  I guess what they're saying is 

before a, quote, personnel decision could be made to lay off a significant 

amount of the workforce, the, quote, shot maker, shot callers, or 
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decisionmakers that would be the co-Board of CEOs would potentially I 

would think this is probably true.   

I realize there's no argument on it, but there would have to be 

some data, some sort of recommendation from HR and those types of 

things before a decision's made where you lay off a high percent of a 

workforce, right?   

MR. TASKA:  I agree 100 percent.  And what I'm responding 

to is an accusation made by these lawyers that information germane to 

that decision has not been circulated among the co-CEOs.   

THE COURT:  Yeah.   

MR. TASKA:  And if that is the case, why are we just hearing 

about now in reaction to something?  Why wasn't there a motion filed if 

there's such critical information that's not being provided? 

Never once heard that before from anyone in this courtroom, 

including Mr. Miller who's here or his counsel, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  And this is -- before you start, Mr. Kemp, this is 

an important point to really underscore.  And everyone has to 

understand this.   

I get it.  There's two sides to every story.  There is.  And so, 

when I really refer to maintaining the status quo, it's probably not a 

status quo everyone wanted.  

I wanted -- because there's allegations made as to Mr. Colucci 

in this case and there's other allegations made as it relates to the other 

Board members and/or members of the executive team.  I get that.   

But when I talk about maintaining the status quo, I'm really 
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focusing on making sure that Vinco Ventures, Inc. can be an ongoing 

concern until the right decisionmaker's are in place to decide what the 

potential outcome and/or course this company shall follow.  That's really 

and truly what it's all about.  

Because for example, Mr. Colucci might have his thoughts, 

but maybe other members of the, quote, executive team and/or Board 

members might disagree.   

There's questions as to how he got to his position.  I 

understand that, but at the end of the day, I haven't made any decisions 

on that.  Ultimately, the facts will decide which side is correct as far as 

those issues are concerned.  

So when I made -- I'll be candid with everyone.  When I'm 

talking about maintaining the status quo, I'm not talking about favoring -- 

in favor of what Defense wants or what Plaintiff wants.   

I'm -- I want to keep the ongoing -- the business ongoing and 

potentially profitable until someone can make a decision as to what 

course this company should follow.  That's all, right?  And it's that 

simple.  So --  

MR. TASKA:  Yeah.   

THE COURT:  And that's why I'm trying to approach it in that 

regard.   

Mr. Kemp, sir?   

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, responding to counsel's allegation that no 

one has made requests for information prior to today, Lisa King has sent 

numerous requests to Mr. Jones for information.   
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And I'll remind the Court and counsel that that's how we 

started on Wednesday.  I pointed out that Ms. King had filed yet another 

email to Mr. Jones asking for information on what bills have been paid 

since August 16th.  And he ignored it once again.   

So, you know, either counsel is conveniently forgetting that 

and is unaware of all the emails from Ms. King, the co-CEO, to the Chief 

Financial Officer that are getting ignored and stone-walled or -- but in 

any event, Your Honor, I mean, the suggestion that the co-CEOs have 

been -- have not been asking for information is totally wrong.   

And I will file -- some of them might have to be filed under seal 

because they do have confidential financial information referenced, but I 

will file all the multiple emails that Lisa King has sent.  And I believe the 

Chairman has also sent emails during the last 30 days asking for certain 

things, all of which are stonewalled.  

And that's why we had to come to Court two days ago based 

on Ms. King's Monday email to Mr. Jones, saying at least give us the 

check register and it was agreed to be provided.   

But they wouldn't give it -- to this day, they won't even tell us 

the balance of the accounts, Your Honor.   

So to suggest that information has been requested that has 

not been requested and it's just the co-CEOs being negligent in their 

duty, but I will ask Ms. King to draft a comprehensive email and copy 

counsel.  And I'm sure I'll have all that information on Monday at 5:00.   

THE COURT:  Anything else on that issue?   

MR. TASKA:  No, Your Honor.  But just getting back to the 
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issue at hand, which was the continuation of the order, again, we think 

it's something the CEOs should decide.  And I agree that the CEO 

should have the information that they need to decide.  

And if that is something that counsel wants to address on a 

counsel to counsel level, I'm happy to talk to them about it.   

THE COURT:  Well, ultimately, something has to be done by 

me today, right?   

MR. KEMP:  Not really, Your Honor, because the next 

payroll's not till Friday.   

THE COURT:  Of next week?   

MR. KEMP:  Next Friday, so yeah, we can punt it till Tuesday 

if we wanted to.   

THE COURT:  All right, so here's my next question in lieu of 

punting this till next Tuesday, what do we do?  I mean, as it relates to 

the co-CEOs and decision-making pertaining to potential and significant 

personnel decisions?  What do we do?   

MR. KEMP:  We'll have Ms. King get the email out.  Counsel's 

already indicated he'll provide any and all information in the request.  

We'll ask for the information.   

Presumably, we'll get it over the weekend or first thing 

Monday morning.  They can have a co-CEO discussion on Monday 

afternoon before we come here Tuesday.  And we'll see if they have an 

agreed-to plan.  If they don't, then it falls back on the Court.   

THE COURT:  Any -- wait, Mr. Parker. 

Any comment on that, sir?  Does that sound like that's 
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workable?   

MR. TASKA:  Yeah, I think that's totally reasonable, sure. 

THE COURT:  Okay, all right, I just want to make sure.   

MR. PARKER:  I was going to stipulate to that, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  Okay, I understand.  Okay, that's fine.  Okay, 

now looking at my checklist here.  All right, and we've already discussed 

the production of current checks?  Have we? 

MR. KEMP:  Yes, Your Honor, I think I'll just have Ms. King 

address this.  They haven't given us July's checks.   

And -- but I'll have her address in the email, but I don't think 

there's a need for the Court to get involved at this point -- 

THE COURT:  All right.   

MR. KEMP:  -- till we see what happens.   

THE COURT:  I'm quite sure you agree with that.   

MR. TASKA:  I do, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  All right.  I don't want to be presumptuous here.   

So I guess next we go to the final matter.  That's the motion 

for clarification.  Is that correct?   

MR. TASKA:  Sure, Your Honor, thank you.  So, look, Your 

Honor's already been socialized to this issue so to speak -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. TASKA:  -- because there's another motion filed on it by 

Defendants.  

And you know, the issue to remind Your Honor is that one of 

the independent directors tried to call for a meeting several days ago.   
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And in response, I got a call from Mr. Parker, who said to 

courteously, and I appreciate it, said we're going to be filing a motion on 

that.   

And following that, within an hour, there was a motion for 

sanctions against my -- oh, against the independent directors for 

violating the Court's August 17th order.   

So what we decided to do was we decided to postpone that 

meeting, cancel the meeting and seek clarification from the Court 

regarding whether Board meetings may be called or if Board meetings 

can be called only if there is unanimous consent among the directors 

that a Board meeting can be held.   

So, you know, our position on this is that Your Honor's order, 

the plain language of it as we read it does not require unanimous 

consent for any Board meeting. 

But the way the order is written, which they drafted, 

Defendants' counsel drafted, is that there's unanimous consent required 

when a meeting's going to be held without 48 hours' notice or an 

agenda.  

And if you read the language of the order, that is how it reads.  

And you know, we can go back to parol evidence here so to speak, Your 

Honor, and look at the transcript.  And they cherry picked some stuff 

from the transcript.  And we cited some stuff.   

And frankly, you know, as I read the transcript from those 

three days, there were so many issues flying around that it was very 

difficult to read from the transcript to glean any, you know, intent from 
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any particular issue, which of course, is why Your Honor memorializes 

the ruling in an order.  

And that's how we read the order.  It's consistent with the 

comment actually cited in Mr. Parker's brief that Mr. Connot made where 

Mr. Connot said, but certainly upon 48 hours' notice, there should be 

able notice properly noticed under the bylaws and statute of director 

meeting to transact business that's properly before the company.  

So I think there were a lot of views being expressed during the 

hearing.  And the Court ultimately entered the 48-hour rule requiring 

unanimity.  

And that made sense because the -- as I understood it, one of 

the problems was that there were a number of hastily called Board 

meetings.  And they were being called without, you know, they were sort 

of sandbagging of the directors.  And that was claim.  

And so, the 48 hours' notice provision said, look, you can only 

have an emergency meeting.  You can only have an emergency meeting 

in less in 48 hours' of notice if anyone agrees.   

But I think more importantly, Your Honor, than any 

interpretation of the Court's language of the order or what was said that 

day during the -- those three days during the hearings, I think we have to 

step back and take a look at what their Defendants' interpretation would 

do.  

And what it has done is that it has neutered the Board.  The 

Board, there is no Board.  Doesn't exist anymore.   

And the reason that is is because the way they are interpreting 
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Your Honor's order is that any meeting of the Board of Directors must 

have unanimous consent of the directors to be able to take place.  There 

must be unanimous consent.   

So what does that mean?  That means one director, like Ms. 

King, could hold up a Board meeting from ever taking place.  And that's 

what she tried to do with respect to the meeting that I referred to when I 

started to argue.   

She declined to attend.  And, therefore, Defendants were 

going to take the position, oh, Ms. King doesn't want to attend I guess, 

you know, we can't have a meeting and we're going to sanction you 

guys if you have one.  

So that's the way it went.  And I think one of the things Mr. 

Kemp mentioned before as well, you can conduct more business other 

ways.  You can have consent.  

Well, the bylaws require unanimous consent.  So that doesn't 

happen either.  

So the Board can basically -- the Board and Your Honor, just 

as a reminder, that the Nevada statute on point says that the Board of 

Directors shall have, quote full, control over the affairs of the company.  

Okay?  That's in NRS 78.120.  Full control of the affairs of the company.  

We now have a Board that can't do anything if Ms. King or Ms. 

Vanderbilt -- or Mr. Vanderbilt don't want it to happen.  They can't do 

anything because they can filibuster.  They can stonewall.  They can say 

no, no meeting.  You're going to send around consents?  No, we're not 

going to return ours.  
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The Board cannot function unless Ms. King or and Mr. 

Vanderbilt say that it's okay for the Board to function.  So that's where 

we are.   

So we have neutered the Board.  The Board doesn't exist 

even though under Nevada law, a Board is supposed to control the 

affairs of the company.  

And, look, the only other thing I'll point out is that I don't think 

Your Honor intended that result.  Maybe Your Honor did intend that 

result for the Board to not have any ability to function.  

And if that's the case, that's the case and we will, you know, 

as I said, we were planning to take that up if that's the Court's decision 

on that.   

But you know, I will note on that that there were other sections 

of the Court's order that suggest that was not the Court's intent.  

Section 2 of the order, and we were talking about this before, 

states that the Board must unanimously agree to expenditures in excess 

of 250,000.   

Well, if unanimous consent is required for that limited purpose, 

Your Honor, look, I don't want to go back to statutory arguments 

because I don't -- but you know, that's clear.  And that's part of our 

position here, that it's inconsistent with Nevada law.  It's inconsistent 

with Your Honor's order of that day.   

It's inconsistent with Your Honor's order of two days later 

where Your Honor said, quote, the Board and Plaintiff's executive shall 

take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure Vinco Ventures' ongoing 
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business operations.  

Again, the Board, okay, is part of that.  The Board shall take 

all reasonable steps necessary to ensure Vinco Ventures' ongoing 

business operations.  

Now they can't.  They won't.  Board meetings are over.  Board 

decisions are over.  The ability of the Board to control the affairs of this 

company is over and it's now vested in the triumvirate of CEOs that we 

have in front of us.  

And I don't know about Your Honor, but based on some of the 

discussions today, that does not seem to be going very well.  And I think 

that giving the Board its power back, the democratically elected Board 

by the shareholders, that's who should be running this company.  Thank 

you, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Thank you, sir.   

Mr. Parker?   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, I wrote down a quote from Mr. 

Taska.  He says the Board can't do anything.  Mr. Taska was not here 

on August 17th when the Court in my opinion did something that 

perhaps was completely out of the box, but so -- such a well-placed and 

well-timed decision on suggestion perhaps I should say, that it resulted 

in a loan notice of default being handled within 24 hours.  

Your Honor suggested to the parties to discuss, while Mr. 

Farnsworth was sitting right here, a carve-out position to your order to 

allow Mr. Farnsworth to address a default notice on a $96 000,000 loan 

sua sponte on this.   
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And that decision resulted in that loan not defaulting, Mr. 

Farnsworth participating until the wee hours of the morning.  And the 

three CEOs were able to resolve that default notice.   

And yet, Mr. Taska comes here two weeks later and says this 

company can't do anything.   

You've created a tripartite CEO circumstance that has worked.  

Where's the failings?  Have we brought one issue to this Court that is an 

operational or programmatic decision that this company's not been able 

to make since you made that order?   

Since August 17th, we've not brought one issue to the Court 

to resolve.  That's a demonstration that your order is working.   

Now I give Mr. Taska credit because although he was not here 

on the 16th, the 17th, and the 18th, he did read my opposition.  And he 

did in fact mention the reference to the transcript where Mr. Connot said 

it's virtually the same thing that Mr. Taska said.   

If we can't have Board meetings, this company can't function.  

The company is functioning.  The employees have not been laid off.  

Payroll has been met.  

Your order is exactly what this company needed, is exactly the 

security the shareholders needed, and it's still an ongoing concern.   

If we leave it to the devices of that Board, controlled by Mr. 

Colucci, we probably have more than just the $6,000,000 we're trying to 

recover at this point or at least figure where it is.   

We would have 80 percent of the employees laid off by now.  

That's would have happened -- that what would have happened had we 
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left this to the Board that Mr. Taska is suggesting this Court should turn 

the reins back over to.   

What you've done instead is you've placed the former 

Secretary of State, is current Clark County Commissioner a lawyer in 

good standing, as a co-CEO, along with Ms. Lisa King and with Mr. 

Colucci. 

And they've handled all of the issues that we're aware of at 

least without having to come to the Court for the Court's intervention.  

How can Mr. Taska in good faith say that this order is not 

exactly what this company needed at the time and still needs to prevent 

it from compromising, I would suggest, the livelihood of the employees, 

the investment of the shareholders, and the assets the company still 

owns.   

Your Honor, I pointed out in the transcript, where in my 

opinion, the Court considered Mr. Connot's comments and decided that 

if there's an issue, that this Court or the, I'm sorry, the CEOs could not 

resolve, the Court will make itself available even if it's without filing a 

brief, but a necessary calling.   

The Court extended itself as not just Judge Williams, so you 

would normally do that, but as a business court judge.  

And so, I'm taken aback by Mr. Taska's suggestion that this 

Court has in any way by virtue of this order prevented this company from 

moving forward.   

I've not heard from Mr. Miller or Ms. King or even from Mr. 

Colucci by way of a motion that this Court -- that this company's been 
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unable to do something.  What I would ask the Court to do first is 

consider procedurally whether or not this motion is correct.  

This motion appears not to be one for clarification but one for 

modification.  And there's two different approaches to that and there's 

two different rules.   

So we pointed out in our opposition that this is improper 

motion if you're trying to modify.  If you're simply seeking clarification of 

what the order means, then that's fine.  

But it doesn't revert back to a modification of it.  The Court can 

simply clarify its position.  And to the extent a modification's being 

sought, I believe we get a chance to brief that issue as well.  

For purposes of clarification, Your Honor, I think the transfers -

- 

THE COURT:  Really as far as clarification concerned, unless 

it's a Rule 60(b)(1) issue -- 

MR. PARKER:  That's right. 

THE COURT:  -- seeking relief from a Court's order for 

inadvertence, mistake, or something like that, then it would be a motion 

for reconsideration pursuant to the EDCR.  

MR. PARKER:  That is correct, Your Honor.  And so, I'm 

concerned, Your Honor, that Mr. Taska's -- I'm not even concerned.  I 

mean, it's clear Mr. Taska wants to modify the order.   

Mr. Taska wants this Court to allow a Board meeting to 

happen because he believes in the Board setting Mr. Colucci, Mr. 

Goldstein, and Mr. Distasio will have a meeting and somehow legitimize  
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$6,000,000 of its -- of payments to be made or made to AI Pros.  

It will somehow legitimize spending almost 1.3 million in 

attorneys' fees from Lucosky Brookman.  It will legitimize the amount of 

money paid to Ballard Spahr, to Fox Rothschild and to Howard & 

Howard, despite any of the CEOs having any of the backup information 

to those expenditures, no contracts, no fee arrangements, no fee 

agreements, none of that information.  

THE COURT:  Well, here's my question, Mr. Parker.  And I 

just want to make sure I understand what's going on from a factual 

perspective.  

Are you saying that these were expenditures made by, quote, 

the Board that didn't go through the -- and I'm talking about the Board of 

Directors that didn't go through administratively what would normally 

happen and those decisions were made by the CEO, along with the 

financial advisers and along the company structure? 

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely, absolutely what I'm saying, Your 

Honor.  And I noticed Miller didn't intend to testify here, but I have 

information from Ms. King indicating that Mr. Ross has asked for 

financial information that he's not received.   

Like Mr. Kemp said, Ms. King has asked for financial 

information she has not received.   

And yet, and I don't even want to say to a Board because 

they're making these decisions without notification to the Chair of the 

Board, which the bylaws allow and afford the Chair to actually control 

these meetings, but he's not being informed of them much less of the 
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items being decided and the payments being made.  

So why would you ever retreat from this order and give the 

power to these I would say the three people who are in contempt of the 

Court's order.   

They've demonstrated why they should not be given control of 

this company.  You have done what is right and what is I would say very 

practical in terms of how to keep this company a going concern, how to 

protect its employees, how to protect the shareholders while we try to 

get to the meat and the evidence of this case.  

Your Honor, I don't know if Ms. Sugden would represent on 

the record and -- 

THE COURT:  No, we won't take any testimony.   

MR. PARKER:  But she's a lawyer.   

THE COURT:  Yeah, but I mean I understand.--  

MR. PARKER:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  I got you.  I do. 

MR. PARKER:  So my point was certainly Your Honor, we will 

provide proof that Ms. King has asked for this information and in a 

declaration she can indicate and perhaps Mr. Miller will also sign a 

declaration that he's asked for documentation related to these 

expenditures, which I believe is a complete demonstration of why this 

Board, Mr. Colucci, Mr. Goldstein, Mr. Distasio should not be given any 

control of this company.   

I think the Court has done exactly what was needed.  And you 

took extensive oral argument over three days to come to this decision.   
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Your Honor, I ask that the order remain in place, that you not 

give -- you not modify this order, and that no further clarifications be 

made.  Thank you, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Thank you, sir.   

Mr. Kemp?   

MR. KEMP:  Your Honor, if you recall, the whole reason for 

this provision was that we were concerned about all these meetings Mr. 

Colucci and the other two independent directors were calling.  Giving 40 

hours' notice, but no agenda.  

And then, the meeting would start and they just cram down 

this, that, and the other thing.  That was the problem we were worried 

about, okay?   

And to suggest that, oh, the Court's order should be read as 

only applying to meetings that take place within 48 hours, those are 

already prohibited without unanimous consent by the bylaws.  

So what they're really saying is that the Court ordered 

something that was already prohibited be prohibited again.  Makes no 

sense.   

And if you take a look at the record, and we cited this on page 

5 of our opposition, remember, we were trying to agree to stipulated 

order that night with Mr. Connot and I thought we had one.   

And then, at the last minute, they couldn't agree to points 4 

and 5.  So 4 and 5 were the -- so what we propose -- and this is from the 

record.   

"So what we propose is that they wouldn't hold any Board 
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meetings unless there's 48 hours' written notice and there's unanimous 

agreement of the Board members."  That's what we proposed.  There 

was no pushback on that, okay?   

What they pushed back on is they wanted to have this 

emergency meeting for Hudson Bay and the Court agreed to a carve-

out.  

And then, I said again, at the same point of the transcript, I 

think it's a reasonable decision because right now, it's 48 hours and we 

just want to stop this thing where everyone notices the Board meeting.  

And again, that's the problem of Mr. Colucci and the two 

independent directors noticing Board meetings with 48 hours' notice, no 

agenda, and just cramming things through.  That's what we were trying 

to stop here.   

Now moving on, the Court accepted paragraph 4 as we 

drafted it, to resolve the concern that I raised that it did do a carve-out.  

And the carve-out was for this Hudson Bay situation, the note being 

called that night.   

And if you recall, Mr. Farnsworth dropped everything, worked 

till 4:00, 5:00 in the morning, got this thing resolved because he is the 

one who primarily deals with the money people.   

And it was resolved favorably to the company.  They filed a 

SEC document talking about what a great result Mr. Farnsworth 

negotiated.  

But in any event, that was the only carve-out.  There were not 

two carve-outs as they're proposing now.  And that's why their argument 
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makes no sense, Your Honor.   

And I would also point out they haven't even tried to submit 

unanimous consents on specific issues.  For example, the reduction of 

force is supposedly a key thing.   

Why don't they draft up a white paper or three or four-page 

paper with their reduction of force proposal.  Send it to Ms. King.  And 

see what she can or cannot agree to.  Maybe we can do it by unanimous 

consent.  

But there is another fallback that they haven't alluded to and 

they're hiding from.  The Court can set a Board meeting upon request of 

the parties.  That's expressly in the order.   

You know, we're -- turns out we come here every twice a 

week now.  You know, if they have some emergency issue that needs to 

be addressed, and you know, if it is an emergency issue as the Hudson 

Bay situation exemplifies, I think they'd find us very accommodating 

because we care more about the company than I submit they do.   

But in any event, if we won't agree to a Board meeting on a 

specific issue that's of dire concern, they can come to Court and get the 

Court to authorize the Board meeting on that particular issue.   

And so, for that reason, I think really as Mr. Parker said, what 

they're trying to do is re-visit the order improperly.   

But you know, it's crystal clear from the transcript that night 

what was intended by this order.  And the fact that the -- there was a 

carve-out made proves it, in addition to the comments I made.  And so 

for that reason, Your Honor, we'd ask their motion be denied.   

RESP333



 

Page 50  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

THE COURT:  All right, thank you, sir.   

Mr. Taska, sir? 

MR. TASKA:  Look, Your Honor, I don't think Your Honor's 

going to rule in my favor on this.  I accept that, but just for the record, I 

am not -- no one is suggesting that the three CEO solution was not a 

thoughtful solution by the Court to come up with something.   

But there comes a point where courts can overstep their 

bounds.  And under NRS 78, the Board by statute is given the power to 

run the company.  There are very discreet exceptions for when a court 

can override that.   

THE COURT:  And what statute is that, again, 78?   

MR. TASKA:  Uh -- 

THE COURT:  Because here's my question and understand 

this.  And this is a unique case in this regard.   

Because everyone -- I guess the best way to say it is Plaintiff 

wants their status quo.  Defendant wants their status quo.   

I looked at it from a different perspective as to the status quo 

pertaining to the health of the company and precluding any significant 

decisions for me -- being made by anyone that can put that in peril.  

That's how I looked at that, right?   

MR. TASKA:  Understood.   

THE COURT:  And so, from this perspective, it's one of those 

things where -- what's the best way to say it?  The facts aren't fully 

developed.  They're not.   

You're 100 percent right.  They're arguing.  I understand it's 
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not testimony.  You've argued.  You appear to be more bottom line, but 

at the end of the day, I don't know who's right or wrong.  I don't mind 

telling you that.   

Got a lot of argument, but I do know this that potentially we'll 

put it this way.  Two and a half weeks or so ago, this company was in 

dire straits, right?  There was a note called in the sum of what 

$7,000,000?  Was it 7-, 8,000,000?   

MR. KEMP:  96-. 

MR. TASKA:  96,000,000.   

THE COURT:  96,000,000.  Yeah.  I mean, a significant sum, 

right?  And so, I did what I could do.  And it apparently worked to attempt 

to remedy that issue.  And ultimately, the company's continuing on.   

Now here's one -- this jumps out at me.  How could that 

happen with a functioning Board, right?  How is that note in the sum of 

the $96,000,000 getting called?   

And it was within -- how long was it from being called?  What 

was the time period?  24 hours, 48 hours?   

MR. TASKA:  Exactly.   

THE COURT:  Right.  And so, I don't know and I look at the 

statute and I know it's been cited.  I don't think it was discussed in any 

great detail, but I'm not here to usurp a Board, but there's allegations of 

misconduct pertaining to a Board and how the Board came to be, right? 

And so, what I'm doing is this.  I'm saying, look, Board, you 

can go ahead and if you want to call it meetings and I want -- and there 

was allegations that these Board meetings were being called without 
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agendas and stuff like that.  I just wanted to give a protocol for that.  

Secondly, as far as the executive team is concerned, that's 

why I did what I did there, too.  So the business can keep and continue 

to function.  

But my concern is this.  And it's really this simple.  Everyone's 

making allegations.  They are, right?   

And for now, they're all allegations.  But there is one fact that 

I'm sure of, one fact, and that's that note was being called.  And I don't 

see how a functioning Board and/or an executive team could let that 

happen, right? 

And so, the reason why I formulated it, and I think, yeah, Mr. 

Kemp is correct in this regard.  That language here is pretty good as to 

what happened, because it really does express my concerns.  And so, 

what I'm saying is this.  And that question how can you let a 

$96,000,000 note call?   

Now you said there's -- what section are you saying because 

I'm quite sure this would come under some sort of exception because 

the -- because I even talked about this, too.   

Remember, there was all these arguments that said, well, 

maybe I should appoint a receiver.  And I went back and looked at it in 

light of the current posture of the company at that time with a note being 

called, I probably could have appointed a receiver, right?   

However, and this was a big issue, I was concerned this case, 

this company's being traded on the NASDAQ and what potential impact 

that would have on stock value, right? 
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And so, what -- and the reason why I think this is important if 

there's going to be a writ, and we can do that, but I'm looking at it from 

this perspective and it's really just simple because I don't think it -- it's 

really addressed.  

I'm going to deny it without prejudice.  And what I mean by 

that is this.   

If there's -- if my decision is violating Nevada statutory law 

without exception, you can tee it up for me so I can take a more rigorous 

review of what the Nevada law is in that regard.  Do you understand 

what I mean?   

MR. TASKA:  Certainly, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Now.  

MR. TASKA:  We -- yeah.  

THE COURT:  So, I mean, if I run afoul as far as Nevada law's 

concerned, I welcome you to point me in the right direction so I can read 

it, and then, I'll modify it.   

But for now, I'm going to deny it without prejudice.  I just want 

to tell you that.  And there's a reason why.  Because I look back and I 

don't mind telling everyone this.  I was very much concerned about the 

health of the company.  Nothing more, nothing less.   

And a note -- and I forgot it was $96,000,000.  That's a lot of 

money.  And that was part of my ultimate concern.   

And anyway, that's my decision as far as that's concerned.  

And it's good that you brought it, at least I can tell you what my primary 

concern was.   

RESP337



 

Page 54  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

And if the statute doesn't permit that -- because I don't 

remember the chapter being cited and briefed, was it?   

MR. TASKA:  It's NRS 78.120.  We cited it in our papers.  And 

it's very simple.  Just that the Board has full control over the company.  

And you know, we can certainly brief it for Your Honor, but the point is 

that there are certain exceptions.   

There are, you know, obviously, there can be creative judicial 

solutions to problems, but when the staff -- when the statutory regime 

like NRS 78 provides for specific exceptions when the Court can step in 

-- 

THE COURT:  And --  

MR. TASKA:  -- that's when the Court is limited from 

overstepping its bounds.   

THE COURT:  And what is that 78 once again?   

MR. TASKA:  78.120.  Is that right?   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, as a housekeeping matter, this 

may be helpful to Mr. Taska on Wednesday, file with the Court was just 

an lodgment of exhibits.  That lodgment included the emails from Lisa 

King asking for the financials.  So that -- those documents have already 

been provided.   

So, Mr. Taska, if you take a look at that, that may be helpful 

for you.  It may save the Court some time.  I think it saves everyone 

some time.   

THE COURT:  All right, and I see 120.  That's the general 

powers.   
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MR. PARKER:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  I get that.  I understand.   

MR. TASKA:  But should it be minimized because it's general 

ballot?  Those are the ballots and that's how it works to be clear.   

THE COURT:  I understand that, but you said there were 

exceptions.  And we should probably be fully briefed and see if one 

occurs.   

And what happens under a situation where -- and there's 

been -- no one's explained to me why was a note being called for 

$96,000,000?  

Because we have to put things in perspective.  And that's 

when I was making the decisionmaking.  That's why I did the carve-out.   

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely.   

THE COURT:  Right?   

MR. TASKA:  And we're past that, Your Honor.  And we still 

have a corporation, a public corporation, that has a Board that can't 

function --  

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. TASKA:  -- doesn't function.   

THE COURT:  Well, I mean, there -- one thing we know for 

sure and I don't think there's been any attempts to function that have 

been brought to my attention, have there?   

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No. 

MR. TASKA:  Your Honor, the independent director tried to 

call a meeting, Mr. Distasio.  That's what started all this.   
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THE COURT:  All right. 

MR. TASKA:  And Ms. King said, no, I'm not going.   

THE COURT:  Okay, well --  

MR. TASKA:  So she filibustered it.   

THE COURT:  All right.  So that's after my order?   

MR. TASKA:  Absolutely, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. TASKA:  So the Board under Your Honor's order cannot 

function.  That's it, Your Honor.   

And I appreciate Your Honor's offer to let us brief this issue 

more fully, which we may take Your Honor up on, but we are going to 

take this up to the Supreme Court, because we don't have time, which is 

we have to get this up.  And I just wanted to let Your Honor know that 

that's our intention. 

THE COURT:  Well, that's fine.  That's fine.   

MR. TASKA:  So, thank you, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  You're welcome.  Anything else?   

MR. KEMP:  No, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Wednesday?   

MR. PARKER:  Tuesday, Your Honor, 1:30.   

THE COURT:  All right. 

MR. PARKER:  Thank you, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Enjoy your weekend.   

MR. PARKER:  You too, Your Honor.  

[Proceedings concluded at 2:57 p.m.] 

RESP340



 

Page 57  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

* * * * * * * 

 
 
 
ATTEST:   I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the 

audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability. 
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